
1

Agenda
Contact Officer: Ron Schrieber, Democratic Services Officer

Tel: 01235 422524

E-mail: ron.schrieber@southandvale.gov.uk

Date: 8 January 2019

Website: www.southoxon.gov.uk

A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee
WILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY 16 JANUARY 2019 AT 6.00 PM

THE FOUNTAIN CONFERENCE CENTRE, HOWBERY PARK, BENSON 
LANE, WALLINGFORD, OX10 8BA

Members of the Committee:
Toby Newman (Chairman)
Anthony Dearlove (Vice-
Chairman)
Joan Bland
Lorraine Hillier
Elaine Hornsby

Mocky Khan
Jeannette Matelot
David Nimmo-Smith
Ian Snowdon

David Turner
Ian White

Substitutes
Nigel Champken-Woods
Steve Connel
Sue Cooper

John Cotton
Stefan Gawrysiak
Elizabeth Gillespie

Sue Lawson

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include 
large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special 
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on 
this agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting.

MARGARET REED

Head of Legal and Democratic 

Public Document Pack



2

1 Chairman's announcements  

To receive any announcements from the chairman and general housekeeping matters.

2 Apologies for absence  

To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.

3 Minutes of the previous meeting  (Pages 5 - 14)

To adopt and sign as a correct record the Planning Committee minutes of the meetings 
held on 28 November and 19 December 2018.  

4 Declarations of interest  

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.   

5 Urgent business  

To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent and to receive any notification of any applications deferred or 
withdrawn.

6 Proposals for site visits  

7 Public participation  

To receive any statements from members of the public that have registered to speak 
on planning applications which are being presented to this committee meeting.  

8 Beechwood, 
Tokers Green 
Lane, Tokers 
Green  

Demolition of the existing dwelling 
and the erection of two two-storey 5-
bedroom dwellings with detached 
double garages and new access with 
entrance gates.

P18/S2331/FUL 15 - 38

9 35 Park Road, 
Didcot OX11 
8QL  

Variation of conditions 2- approved 
plans and 11- protected species 
survey report on application ref 
P18/S0995/FUL.

P18/S3443/FUL 39 - 48

10 Delight 2 
Kebab & Pizza 
House, 100 
Broadway, 
Didcot OX11 
8AB  

Variation of condition 2 of application 
reference P10/W0325 to extend 
opening hours of hot food take-
away. 

P18/S3345/FUL 49 - 60



3

11 Grey Meadows, 
Rotherfield 
Greys RG9 4QJ  

Removal of condition 6 -  laying out 
and construction of an access, 
driveway or other hard standing on 
application ref P17/S1779/FUL.

P18/S2253/FUL 61 - 66

12  Land to the 
rear of Unit 1, 
Christmas 
Lane, Thame, 
Oxfordshire 
OX9 2BY  

Proposed contractor’s storage yard 
B8 and associated office B1.

P18/S3093/FUL 67 - 74

13 P18/S3375/HH - 
6 Leyburne 
Gardens, 
Chinnor OX39 
4EL  

Single storey side and rear 
extension with garage conversion 
and alterations.

P18/S3375/HH 75 - 82



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Minutes
OF A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee

HELD ON WEDNESDAY 28 NOVEMBER 2018 AT 6.00 PM

THE FOUNTAIN CONFERENCE CENTRE, HOWBERY PARK, BENSON LANE, 
WALLINGFORD, OX10 8BA

Present:

Toby Newman (Chairman)

Anthony Dearlove, Joan Bland, Lorraine Hillier, Elaine Hornsby, Mocky Khan, Jeannette 
Matelot, David Nimmo-Smith, Ian Snowdon, David Turner and Ian White

Apologies:

There were no apologies.

Officers:

Katherine Canavan, Sharon Crawford, Paula Fox, Kim Gould, Simon Kitson, Paul Lucas 
and Nicola Meurer

147 Chairman's announcements 

The chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting, outlined the procedure to be followed 
and advised on emergency evacuation arrangements.

148 Declarations of interest 

Toby Newman declared that in relation to application P17/S4254/O – Oxford Brookes 
University, Waterperry Road, Holton that although he is a member of Wheatley Parish 
Council, he does not attend the planning committee meetings and was therefore not 
present when this application had been discussed.

149 Urgent business 

There was no urgent business.

150 Proposals for site visits 

There were no proposals for site visits.

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



2

151 Public participation 

The list showing members of the public who had registered to speak was tabled at the 
meeting.

152 P17/S4254/O - Oxford Brookes University, Waterperry Road, 
Holton 

The committee considered outline application P17/S4254/O for the demolition of all 
existing structures on the Oxford Brookes University site, Waterperry Road, Holton and 
redevelopment with up to 500 dwellings and associated works, with all matters reserved 
except details of vehicular access.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

Officer updates:
 Town and Country Planning (England) Direction 2009 requires local planning 

authorities in England to consult the Secretary of State before granting planning 
permission for certain types of development. Because the proposal exceeds 
1000sqm of floorspace in the Green Belt, if the application were to be approved, it 
would need to be referred to the National Casework unit first, who will consider 
whether the Secretary of State’s intervention is needed. 

 Additional consultation responses had been received from the following:
o Urban Design Officer: The revised plans address previous concerns. 
o Conservation Officer: The proposal is an improvement on the previous 

scheme, but there will still be a considerable compromise to the historic 
relationship of Holton Park with its former deer park. The level of harm would 
be ‘less than substantial’. A planning judgement is needed to assess whether 
the heritage and public benefits clearly outweigh the harm.

o Housing Development Officer: The scheme meets the criteria for a slight 
reduction in affordable housing through the Vacant Building Credit route. 
This has been agreed at 34.57%, with a split between 75% Affordable Rent 
and 25% Shared Ownership. The development would provide 172 affordable 
units on-site, and a commuted sum of 0.85 of a unit.

Allan East, a representative of Holton Parish Council, spoke objecting to the application.  

Doug Lamont, a representative of Wheatley Parish Council, spoke objecting to the 
application.  

Michael Blowfield spoke objecting to the application.  

Robert Gardner, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application.

John Walsh, the local ward councillor, spoke objecting to the application.  

In response to questions raised by the committee, the officers reported that:
 The application is for outline permission for up to 500 dwellings and CIL would be 

payable, the figure of which would be finalised at a later stage.
 Oxfordshire County Council Highways have withdrawn their objections as the 

required mitigations concerning connectivity have now been secured.

Page 6



3

Committee members expressed concerns regarding the following:
 the encroachment of proposed built form to the west of the site having an impact on 

the openness of the green belt;
 the number of properties proposed being higher than that which is proposed in the 

emerging neighbourhood development plan;
 the impact on the setting of the adjacent historic asset, Holton Park; and
 issues with connectivity into Holton.

A motion, moved and seconded, to refuse the application was declared carried on being 
put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to refuse outline planning permission for application P17/S4254/O for the 
following reasons:

1. The residential development would extend beyond the predominantly developed 
limits of the campus onto the western area of the site, which is currently 
undeveloped land in the Green Belt. The encroachment of development into this 
area would significantly harm the openness and visual amenity of the Green Belt, 
and result in loss of undeveloped land which contributes positively to the open 
character of the site and wider setting within the Green Belt. There are insufficient 
public benefits provided by the development to amount to very special 
circumstances for development in the Green Belt. The development therefore 
conflicts with paragraph 145 of the NPPF, policy CSEN2 of the South Oxfordshire 
Core Strategy 2027 (Adopted 2012) and saved policy GB4 of the South Oxfordshire 
Local Plan (2011).

2. By reason of the encroachment onto the western, undeveloped area of the site, the 
development would significantly compromise the historic relationship of Holton Park 
with its former deer park, and erode the understanding of the open setting and rural 
context of the Scheduled Monument and therefore conflicts with paragraphs 193 
and 196 of the NPPF (July 2018), policy CSEN3 of the South Oxfordshire Core 
Strategy 2027 (Adopted 2012) and saved policies CON5 and CON15 of the South 
Oxfordshire Local Plan (2011).

3. In light of the lengthy walking distances between the development site and facilities 
in Wheatley, and the poor connectivity with Holton, the development would 
represent a detached and poorly integrated neighbourhood where future occupants 
would be highly reliant on private transport. The mitigation, in the form of pedestrian 
and cycle link improvements, would be insufficient to reduce distances to the extent 
that they would become attractive alternatives to private transport. It therefore 
conflicts with paragraphs 92, 102, 108 and 110 of the NPPF (July 2018), policies 
CS1, CSS1, CSM1 and CSM2 of the South Oxfordshire Core Strategy and saved 
policies T1, T2, T7 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan (2011), and Policy 17 of the 
Local Transport Plan 4 (2015 - 2030).

4. In the absence of a completed Section 106 legal agreement, the proposal fails to 
secure infrastructure necessary to meet the needs of the development. As such, the 
development would be contrary to the NPPF, policies CSI1 and CSM2 of the South 
Oxfordshire Core Strategy and policies R2, R6 and T1 of the South Oxfordshire 
Local Plan 2011.

5. In the absence of a completed Section 106 legal agreement, the proposal fails to 
secure affordable housing to meet the needs of the District. As such, the 

Page 7



4

development would be contrary to the NPPF and policy CSH3 of the South 
Oxfordshire Core Strategy.

153 P18/S1729/FUL - 180 and 182 Fane Drive, Berinsfield 

The committee considered application P18/S1729/FUL for the conversion of two takeaway 
units to two residential units at 180 and 182 Fane Drive, Berinsfield.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

In response to questions from the committee, officers clarified that a two-bedroom dwelling 
requires 50 sq.m. of amenity space and two parking spaces.

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on being 
put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P18/S1729/FUL, subject to the 
following conditions:

1. Commencement three years – full planning permission.
2. Approved plans.
3. Parking and manoeuvring areas retained.

154 P18/S2866/FUL - 27 Benson Lane, Crowmarsh Gifford 

The committee considered application P18/S2866/FUL for the erection of a detached 
dwelling at 27 Benson Lane, Crowmarsh Gifford.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on being 
put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P18/S2866/FUL, subject to the 
following conditions:

1. Commencement three years - full planning permission.
2. Approved plans.
3. Schedule of materials.
4. New vehicular access.
5. Vision splay dimensions.
6. UNIQUE - Turning areas and car parking.

155 P18/S1500/O - Marigay, Russells Water 

The committee considered outline application P18/S1500/O for a single storey three-
bedroom infill dwelling on land adjacent to Marigay, Russells Water, incorporating matters 
of access, layout and scale with matters of appearance and landscaping reserved.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

Page 8



5

Richard Collett, a local resident, spoke objecting to the application.  

Sebastian Brock, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application.

In response to questions raised by the committee, the officers reported that Condition 5 
can be amended to include the retention of the existing hedge.

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application with an amendment to 
condition 5 as detailed above, was declared carried on being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant outline planning permission for application P18/S1500/O, subject to 
the following conditions:

1. Timescales for the submission of reserved matters and the
commencement of development.

2. Development to be carried out in accordance with the approved plans.
3. No change in levels without written agreement.
4. Schedule of materials to be agreed prior to first use.
5. Tree protection to be agreed prior to commencement, to include the retention of the 

existing hedge.
6. New vehicular access to be implemented prior to occupation.
7. Vision splay details to be agreed prior to occupation.
8. Parking and manoeuvring areas to be provided and retained in

accordance with the approved plans.
9. Restriction on use of roof to prevent use as a terrace.

156 P18/S2940/FUL - Chambers Place, Goring Road, near Woodcote 

David Nimmo-Smith, one of the local ward councillors, stepped down from the committee 
and took no part in the debate or voting for this item.

The committee considered application P18/S2940/FUL for a variation of Condition 2 - 
Approved plans - of planning permission P16/S3646/FUL (proposed demolition of existing 
barns and stables and erection of two detached dwelling houses with associated parking 
and amenity space provision) at Chambers Place, Goring Road, near Woodcote.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

Adrian Gould, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application.

David Nimmo-Smith, one of the local ward councillors, spoke to the application.  

In response to questions raised by the committee, the officers reported that:

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on being 
put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P18/S2940/FUL, subject to the 
following conditions:

Page 9



6

1. The development must be begun not later than 20th July 2020.
2. Approved plans.
3. Prior to the commencement, a schedule of all materials to be used in the external 

construction and finishes of the development shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority (LPA).

4. Removal of permitted development rights - No extensions or outbuildings as 
described in Schedule 2, Part 1, Class A, B and E.

5. Prior to the first occupation of the development, the existing means of
access onto Goring Road shall be improved and laid out and constructed strictly in 
accordance with the local highway authority's specifications and all ancillary works 
specified shall be undertaken.

6. Prior to the first occupation of the development, the parking and turning
areas shall be provided in accordance with drawing no. 17189-PP0010,
and shall be constructed, laid out, surfaced, drained and completed to be compliant 
with sustainable drainage (SuDS) principles, and shall be
retained unobstructed except for the parking of vehicles associated with the 
development at all times.

7. The vision splays shown on drawing no. 17189-PP0010, shall not be
obstructed by any object, structure, planting or other material with a
height exceeding or growing above 0.9 metres as measured from
carriageway level.

8. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the scheme of mitigation 
and enhancement, as stated in section 7 of the supporting bat assessment and bat 
mitigation strategy (Ecosupport Ltd,21/10/2016). Any variation shall be agreed in 
writing by the LPA.

9. Prior to the commencement of the development a phased contaminated land risk 
assessment shall be carried out. Each phase shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the LPA.

10.The tree protection details as described within the submitted tree report and plans 
(Venners Arboriculture, August 2018) shall be put in place prior to any on site works 
including demolition and thereafter retained in situ for the duration of development.

11.Prior to the commencement of the development, a scheme for the
landscaping of the site, including the planting of live trees and shrubs, the treatment 
of the access road and hard standings, and the provision of boundary treatment 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA.

The meeting closed at 8.30 pm

Chairman Date

Page 10



1

Minutes
OF A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee

HELD ON WEDNESDAY 19 DECEMBER 2018 AT 6.00 PM

DIDCOT CIVIC HALL, BRITWELL ROAD, DIDCOT, OX11 7JN

Present:

John Cotton (Substituting for Elaine Hornsby), Lorraine Hillier, Mocky Khan, Jeannette 
Matelot, David Nimmo-Smith (acting as chairman), Ian Snowdon, David Turner and Ian 
White

Apologies:

Toby Newman, Anthony Dearlove and Elaine Hornsby tendered apologies. 

Officers:

Emma Bowerman, Katherine Canavan, Paula Fox and Nicola Meurer

Also present: 

Will Hall and Paul Harrison

157 Chairman's announcements 

A motion, moved and seconded, to nominate David Nimmo-Smith to chair the meeting was 
declared carried on being put to the vote.

The chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting, outlined the procedure to be followed 
and advised on emergency evacuation arrangements.

158 Minutes of the previous meeting 

RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the meetings held on 7 and 21 November as 
correct records and agree that the Chairman sign these as such.

159 Declarations of interest 

There were no declarations of interest.

160 Urgent business 

There was no urgent business.

Public Document Pack

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



2

161 Proposals for site visits 

There were no proposals for site visits.

162 Public participation 

The list showing members of the public who had registered to speak was tabled at the 
meeting.

163 P17/S4415/FUL - Land off Rycote Lane, Christmas Hill, Rycote 
Lane, near Moreton and Thame 

The committee considered application P17/S4415/FUL for the relocation of Thame 
Livestock Market with buildings to accommodate agricultural sales, lairage, administrative 
offices, welfare facilities, business units and associated external works to include highway 
access, roadways, vehicle parking, vehicle washing and other ancillary works on land off 
Rycote Lane, Christmas Hill, Rycote Lane, near Moreton and Thame.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

Edward Briggs, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application.

A motion, moved and seconded, to authorise the head of planning to approve the 
application was declared carried on being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to authorise the head of planning to grant planning permission for application 
P17/S4415/FUL, subject to the following:

A. The completion of the relevant legal agreements to secure:
 Highways works (S278).
 Travel Plan Monitoring (S106 or unilateral undertaking).
 Public Art (S106 or unilateral undertaking).

B. The following conditions:
1. Work to commence within three years.
2. In accordance with approved plans.
3. Materials schedule.
4. Details of signage.
5. Details of hard and soft landscaping.
6. Contamination survey.
7. Contamination validation report.
8. BREEAM certification report – ‘Excellent’ rating.
9. Electric vehicle charging points.
10.Provision of cycle parking and shower facilities.
11.Parking areas – SuDs compliant.
12.New vehicular access.
13.Visibility splays.
14.Travel plan.
15.Construction traffic management plan.
16.Details of surface water drainage.
17.Details of foul water drainage.

Page 12



3

18.Sustainable drainage scheme.
19.Details of external lighting.
20.Details of public art scheme.
21. In accordance with the local planning authority’s ecological licence.
22.Certificate for great crested newt compensation (licensing requirement).
23.All works to be carried out in accordance with great crested newt mitigation 

principles (licensing requirement).
24.Commercial units – only A1 or A2 uses, no greater than the floorspace

indicated on drawing AL(p)02, and directly connected with the agricultural purposes 
of the livestock market.

25.Prior to occupation of the commercial units, submission of details of the
occupying business and any advertising.

26.No change of use unless through the grant of planning permission.
27.No additional floors or mezzanine floors.

164 P18/S0951/O - Wyevale Country Gardens, Reading Road, Harpsden 

The committee considered outline application for the demolition of all existing structures at 
the former Wyevale Country Gardens site, Reading Road, Harpsden, and the development 
of the following: development of B1 and/or B2 and/or D1 floorspace and required parking 
and servicing facilities on the south-eastern part of the site; development of up to 40 
dwellings on the rest of the site; and off-site highways works together with associated open 
space and landscaping. All matters to be reserved with the exception of access.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

Ken Arlett, a representative of Henley Town Council, spoke in support of the application.  

Tony Wright, a representative of Harpsden Parish Council, spoke objecting to the 
application.  

Tudor Taylor, a representative of Shiplake Parish Council, spoke objecting to the 
application.  

Mr Alex Hersham, Stefan Gawrysiak and Sean O’Leary spoke in support of the 
application.

Will Hall and Paul Harrison, the local ward councillors, spoke in support of the application.  

Members were satisfied with this application to redevelop the site, which has been empty 
for nine years. Officers confirmed that the 40% affordable housing as proposed, will be 
secured under a legal agreement.

A motion, moved and seconded, to authorise the head of planning to approve the 
application was declared carried on being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to authorise the head of planning to grant planning permission for application 
P18/S0951/O, subject to the following:

A. The prior completion of a Section 106 agreement to secure the affordable
housing, financial contributions and other obligations stated above; and

B. The following conditions:
Page 13



4

1. Approval of reserved matters – appearance, landscaping, layout and
scale.

2. Timeframe for submission of reserved matters.
3. Commencement.
4. Development to accord with approved plans.
5. Dwelling statement based on most up-to-date evidence.
6. Approved access provided prior to occupation.
7. Visibility splays.
8. Construction traffic management plan.
9. Travel plan / information pack.
10.Tree protection.
11.Biodiversity enhancement plan.
12.Foul drainage provision.
13.Sustainable drainage details.
14.Air quality mitigation.
15.Phased contaminated risk assessment.
16.Remediation strategy.
17.Construction hours.
18.Control of construction dust.
19.Noise assessment and control (commercial element).
20.Operating hours (commercial element).

165 P18/S3214/HH - The Pump House, 2 Heyford Hill Cottages, Heyford 
Hill Lane, Littlemore 

The committee considered application P18/S3214/HH for the demolition of the existing 
lean-to outbuilding and replacement with new garage/outbuilding at The Pump House, 2 
Heyford Hill Cottages, Heyford Hill Lane, Littlemore.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on being 
put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P18/S3214/HH, subject to the 
following conditions:

1. Commencement three years – full planning permission.
2. Approved plans.
3. Materials as on plan.
4. Contamination (unsuspected contaminated land).

The meeting closed at 7.20 pm

Chairman Date
Page 14



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 16th January 2019 

APPLICATION NO. P18/S2331/FUL
APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION
REGISTERED 6.7.2018
PARISH KIDMORE END
WARD MEMBER Robert Simister
APPLICANT Bentier Homes Ltd
SITE Beechwood, Tokers Green Lane, Tokers Green
PROPOSAL Demolition of the existing dwelling and the erection 

of two two-storey 5-bedroom dwellings together with 
detached double garages and formation of new 
access with entrance gates (rear balconies removed 
and reduction in the rear roofline as shown on 
amended plans received 1st November 2018 and 
levels, materials, landscaping and tree protection 
details shown on amended and additional plans 
received 20th November 2018 and drainage details 
as shown on plans received 30th November 2018).

OFFICER Paul Lucas

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 Officers recommend that planning permission is granted. This report explains how 

officers have reached this conclusion. The application is referred to Planning 
Committee due to Kidmore End Parish Council’s objection to the current plans.

1.2 The application site is shown on the plan attached at Appendix A. It consists of a 
large rectangular plot occupied by a 1950’s detached bungalow with an attached 
garage on the western side of Tokers Green Lane. It forms part of a ribbon of 
development forming the northern part of the small settlement of Tokers Green. It has 
a red brick finish and a pitched roof with plain clay roof tiles and is set back about 45 
metres from the road. The site is bounded by a variety of fences, mature trees, 
hedges and shrubs along all the boundaries, with a mature hedge screening the front 
of the site. 

1.3 The western side of the road consists of similar sized plots containing detached 
dwellings. Many of these have been extended in recent years, so that many now have 
two storeys, including Cherry Trees to the north of the site. There is no prevailing form 
or design in the locality. The eastern side of the road is undeveloped and is open 
countryside, and there is a tree belt to the rear of the site with open countryside 
beyond. The site slopes up from front to rear. Although the site has no special 
designation, the countryside beyond the site to the east and west lies within the 
Chilterns Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB).

2.0 PROPOSAL
2.1 The application seeks full planning permission for the demolition of the existing dwelling 

and the erection of two replacement two-storey 5-bedroom dwellings and detached 
double garages along with the formation of a new vehicular access with new entrance 
gates, as shown on the current plans and supporting documents submitted with the 
application.

Page 15

Agenda Item 8

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/S2331/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 16th January 2019 

2.2 The application was amended during the application process to adjust the layout and 
visual appearance of the dwellings and garages and to remove the proposed rear 
balconies. The plans were also updated to provide additional tree protection, 
landscaping and drainage details. A copy of the plans supporting the application is 
attached as Appendix B. Other documentation associated with the application can be 
viewed on the council’s website.

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
3.1 Kidmore End Parish Council – The application should be refused due to:

 The proposed buildings are nearer the boundaries with both neighbours, 
compared to the approved scheme;

 The footprint now takes the rear part of the dwellings well beyond the rear 
elevations of both Cherry Trees and Newlyn, making them overbearing and 
unneighbourly;

 Garages are out of keeping with others in Tokers Green Lane

Drainage - (South&Vale) – No objections to submitted details

Forestry Officer (South Oxfordshire District Council) - No objections subject to 
conditions

Highways Liaison Officer (Oxfordshire County Council) - No objections subject to 
conditions

Countryside Officer (South Oxfordshire & Vale of White Horse) - No objections

Mapledurham Parish Council (adjoining parish to the rear of the site) - No objections

Neighbours -  Five households raising objections and concerns, three of which were 
reiterated following the most recent amendments, summarised as follows:

 Subdivision of the original plot would be an overdevelopment
 More intensive higher density development with shared access would be out of 

keeping with other properties
 Too tall and too close to the boundaries and each other
 Plot 2 would lie within two metres of the boundary, resulting in overbearing and 

domineering impact and loss of light to rear facing windows and garden of 
Newlyn

 Loss of privacy to Newlyn from ground floor side windows
 Plot 1 would project beyond front and rear of Cherry Trees, resulting in loss of 

outlook and sunlight
 Concern about external materials

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
4.1 P18/S0327/FUL - Approved (03/04/2018)

Demolition of the existing dwelling and the erection of a new two-storey 5-bedroom 
dwelling together with a detached three-bay garage/carport and formation of new 
access with entrance gates.

P14/S0887/FUL - Approved (19/05/2014)
Demolition of bungalow and erection of two-storey 5-bedroom replacement dwelling.

P10/E1854/EX - Approved (31/01/2011)
Extension of time for implementation of planning permission P08/E0299 (Erection of 
replacement dwelling).

Page 16

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=ApplicationDetails&REF=P18/S2331/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/S0327/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P14/S0887/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P10/E1854/EX


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 16th January 2019 

P08/E0299 - Approved (02/05/2008)
Proposed Replacement Dwelling

5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE
5.1 South Oxfordshire Core Strategy (SOCS) Policies

CS1 -  Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSB1 -  Conservation and improvement of biodiversity
CSEN1 -  Landscape protection
CSQ2 -  Sustainable design and construction
CSQ3 -  Design
CSR1 -  Housing in villages
CSS1 -  The Overall Strategy

5.2 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 (SOLP 2011) policies;
C4  -  Landscape setting of settlements
C6  -  Maintain & enhance biodiversity
C9  -  Loss of landscape features
D1  -  Principles of good design
D2  -  Safe and secure parking for vehicles and cycles
D3  -  Outdoor amenity area
D4  -  Reasonable level of privacy for occupiers
D10  -  Waste Management 
EP1  -  Adverse affect on people and environment
EP6  -  Sustainable drainage
G2  -  Protect district from adverse development
G5  -  Best use of land/buildings in built up areas
H4  -  Housing sites in towns and larger villages outside Green Belt
T1  -  Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
T2  -  Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

5.3 Neighbourhood Plan policies;
Kidmore End Neighbourhood Area was formally designated on 20 December 2017. The 
parish council has started the process of gathering evidence and engaging with the 
local community. This is to give the plan a direction and draft policies that will form the 
neighbourhood plan.

5.4 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents
South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (SODG 2016) – Section 7 – Plots & Buildings
South Oxfordshire Landscape Assessment – Character Area 10 – Chilterns Plateau 
with Valleys

5.5 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
National Planning Policy Framework Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
The policies within the SOCS and the SOLP 2011 of relevance to this application are in 
general conformity with the provisions of the NPPF and NPPG and therefore this 
application can be determined against the relevant policies above.

6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 The planning issues that are relevant to this application are whether the development 

would:
 be in accordance with the Council’s Housing Strategy;
 result in the loss of an open space or view of public, environmental or ecological 

value;

Page 17

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P08/E0299


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 16th January 2019 

 be in keeping with the character and appearance of the surrounding area and 
the landscape setting of the nearby Chilterns AONB, including safeguarding 
important trees;

 safeguard the living conditions of neighbouring residential occupiers and would 
provide suitable living conditions for future occupiers;

 demonstrate an acceptable provision of off-street parking spaces for the 
resultant dwelling or other conditions prejudicial to highway safety; and

 give rise to any other material planning considerations

6.2 Principle of Development
The site is located within the built-up area of the settlement of Tokers Green. The 
SOCS Policy relevant to this proposal is CSR1. The SOCS classifies Tokers Green as 
an “other village”. Under Policy CSR1, residential development on infill sites of up to 0.1 
hectares is acceptable in principle in “other villages”. The supporting text for Policy 
CSR1 states, “Infill development is defined as the filling of a small gap in an otherwise 
built up frontage, or on other sites within settlements where the site is closely 
surrounded by buildings.” The site area is 0.42 hectares, which would be larger than 
the infill limit. However, Policy CSR1 also states that “redevelopment proposals in all 
categories of settlement may be acceptable but will be considered on a case by case 
basis through the development management process in line with other policies in the 
Development Plan.” As such, officers are satisfied that the principle of this development 
is acceptable under the SOCS as a redevelopment of a site containing an existing 
dwelling and located within an established line of frontage dwellings forming part of the 
village. The net gain of a single dwelling would not exceed the maximum net gain of 2-3 
dwellings that Policy CSR1 envisages that infill sites should deliver in this category of 
village. Officers are therefore satisfied the principle of this development is acceptable 
under the SOCS. Consequently, the proposal falls to be assessed primarily against the 
criteria of Policy H4 of the SOLP 2011 for new dwellings which are addressed below.

6.3 Loss of Open Space
Criterion (i) of Policy H4 of the SOLP 2011 requires that an important open space of 
public, environmental or ecological value is not lost, nor an important public view spoilt. 
The site already contains a dwelling and is not accessible to the public. Although there 
are views of the site from the road, these are in the context of adjoining development 
rather than open countryside. There would also be no adverse ecological implications 
arising from this proposal. On this basis, the proposal would be in accordance with the 
above criterion.

6.4 Visual Impact
Criterion (ii) of Policy H4 of the SOLP 2011 requires that the design, height, scale and 
materials of the proposed development are in keeping with its surroundings and 
criterion (iii) requires that the character of the area is not affected. Policies CSQ3 of the 
SOCS and D1 of the SOLP 2011 expand on this requirement in respect of ensuring 
good design and maintaining local distinctiveness. Policy CSEN1 of the SOCS explains 
that the District’s distinct landscape character and key features will be protected against 
inappropriate development and where possible enhanced. Policy C4 aims to protect the 
landscape setting of the District’s settlements.

6.5 Local residents are concerned that the proposed development would double the plot 
density. However, this would still be a low density of 4.8 dwellings per hectare, which 
would be appropriate in a rural area such as this. The plot width would be halved into 
separate plots of 16 metres width. Whilst Newlyn has a similar plot width to the existing 
Beechwood at 32 metres, Cherry Trees has a plot width of about 20 metres. Therefore, 
although the plot subdivision would be apparent in public views, the reduction in plot 
widths would not result in a significant contrast to the established residential character. 

Page 18



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 16th January 2019 

The front building line of the dwellings would be further forward than the existing 
bungalow, but they would still be sited broadly in between the building lines of Newlyn 
and Cherry Trees and over 30 metres back from the highway boundary.

6.6 As was the case with the previous planning permission P18/S0327/FUL for the 
replacement of Beechwood with one two-storey dwelling, the proposed dwellings and 
their garages would be set into the slope so that their ridge heights would be at the 
same level as Cherry Trees and its garage. The combined width of the two dwellings, at 
around 24.5 metres would only be approximately 1 metre greater than the width of the 
approved dwelling. The built form would be spread out closer to the site boundaries 
than the approved dwelling. However, the gaps to the boundaries and between the 
proposed dwellings would be at least 2 metres, which would compare favourably to the 
1.5 metre gap between Cherry Trees and the boundary. 

6.7 The garages would be positioned forward of the dwellings, but also on a similar scale 
and alignment to the garage at Cherry Trees. The external staircases would not appear 
as unduly prominent features, given that they would be 20-25 metres back from the 
lane. Although the dwellings would not have individual driveways onto Tokers Green 
Lane, the shared access point would mean that there would continue to be only a 
single gap in the roadside boundary from which the dwellings and garages would be 
clearly glimpsed. The proposed gates would be a traditional 5-bar design. In respect of 
external materials, the proposed dwellings would have a similar appearance with a 
combination of brick and timber external walls and clay tiles to that indicated for the 
approved dwelling. The applicant has supplied a materials schedule, which confirms 
that the main brick and would be of a traditional blend variety and the clay tile would be 
a rustic type. Given that the site itself lies outside of any designated area and there are 
examples of dwellings with concrete roof tiles in the vicinity, the proposed external 
materials would be acceptable.

6.8 The Council’s Forestry Officer has commented that there would appear to be works 
proposed within the root protection area of a Sycamore tree that is located within 
Newlyn close to the southern site boundary. The proposed works could lead to the 
decline of this tree, due to its close proximity to the boundary. When assessed in 
accordance with BS 5837:2012, the Sycamore tree is of insufficient arboricultural value 
to be considered a constraint to the proposed development, due to its limited amenity 
value and low quality. The tree does not meet the criteria to be protected by a tree 
preservation order. An informative has been imposed to recommend that the applicant 
notifies the tree owner of these works prior to the commencement of the site works, so 
they are made aware of the impact of the works and can take appropriate action. It is 
also advised that a competent arboriculturist is consulted to provide advice on the 
future management of the Sycamore tree. Otherwise, the Forestry Officer has found the 
frontage parking arrangements and drainage scheme would allow for submitted tree 
protection and landscaping details to satisfactorily mitigate the arboricultural impact of 
the development, subject to planning conditions being imposed to secure 
implementation in accordance with these details.

6.9 In overall terms, the proposed development would be sufficiently in keeping with the 
character of established built form to prevent any significant harm to the rural character 
of the locality and the setting of the adjoining Chilterns AONB, in accordance with the 
above policies.

Page 19

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/S0327/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 16th January 2019 

6.10 Residential Amenity Impact
Criterion (iv) of Policy H4 of the SOLP 2011 requires that there are no overriding 
amenity objections. Policy D4 of the SOLP 2011 requires that all new dwellings should 
be designed and laid out to secure a reasonable degree of privacy for the occupiers. 
The proposed development would increase the overall height of built form from single to 
two storeys. Although the approved replacement dwelling would have the same ridge 
height, the closest distance to the boundary with Newlyn would be reduced from 5 
metres to 2 metres. The adjoining residents’ concerns about the proposal resulting in 
roughly 11.5 metres depth of two storey brickwork of Plot 2 being positioned so close to 
their boundary is understood.

6.11 However, there would still be a gap of about 13 metres between the proposed dwelling 
and Newlyn. This would mean that the closest rear-facing window would be about 18 
metres from the proposed wall, which would lie outside of a notional 45-degree line of 
sight taken from that window. Given the distance and angle involved, officers consider 
that the rear facing rooms of Newlyn would retain an open aspect and any reduction in 
outlook and light received by these rooms would not be so significant as to warrant 
refusal of planning permission. The impact on the garden would be greater, but this 
would be limited to a relatively small portion of the rear garden behind Newlyn’s garage 
close to the boundary. The neighbours are particularly concerned about the loss of 
sunlight. However, as Plot 2 would be located to the north-west of Newlyn, any 
overshadowing would only be experienced for a limited time of the year, which would 
not result in a level of harm that could justify withholding planning permission. Other 
parts of the large rear garden, including those immediately adjacent to the rear of 
Newlyn would remain largely unaffected by the proposal. In relation to loss of privacy, 
the first-floor windows in the south-facing elevation of Plot 2 would be subject to an 
obscure glazing/fixed shut condition and the rooflights would exceed 1.7 metres above 
internal floor level. Given the proposed dwellings would be set into the ground the 
proposed ground floor side windows would be unlikely to result in excessive 
overlooking over the site boundary. The majority of existing boundary planting would be 
retained and augmented with a Wild Cherry, which would help to soften the impact of 
the development. The position of the proposed garage to Plot 2 would also not unduly 
intrude upon the residential amenity of the occupiers of Newlyn.

6.12 The relationship of Plot 1 with Cherry Trees would be closer to that of the approved 
dwelling. The depth of the two-storey element would project no further back into the site 
than the approved two storey rear building line of the approved dwelling. However, the 
proposed rear gable would be about 2 metres closer to the boundary with Cherry Trees 
and there would be an additional single storey element between the gable and the 
boundary. However, the applicant has demonstrated that both additional elements 
would lie outside a 45-degree line from the closest rear-facing window of Cherry Trees 
and in any event the single storey element would not project as far back or as close to 
the boundary as parts of the existing bungalow. This indicates to officers that the rear 
aspect of Cherry Trees would remain largely open and any impact on outlook and 
daylight would not be significant. The additional two storey element would not result in 
any significant additional loss of sunlight to the adjoining rear garden, given the 
remaining distance in excess of 6 metres and the due south orientation when the sun 
would be at its highest. 

Page 20



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 16th January 2019 

6.13 Compared with the approved dwelling, Plot 1 would have an additional front-projecting 
two storey gable. It is evident from the plans that this would not intrude unduly on the 
outlook from and light received by the front facing rooms and would only overshadow a 
gravel hardstanding. The additional impact on Cherry Trees would also be 
compensated for somewhat by the proposed garage to Plot 1 being two bays, whereas 
the approved garage is a larger 3-bay structure. In relation to loss of privacy, the first-
floor windows in the north-facing elevation of Plot 1 would be subject to an obscure 
glazing/fixed shut condition and the rooflights would exceed 1.7 metres above internal 
floor level. It is also notable that the approved dwelling included a rear balcony that has 
been deleted from the dwellings in the current application.

6.14 In overall terms, the proposed development would not detract significantly from the 
residential amenity of either of the adjoining occupiers. The amount of outdoor amenity 
space would be well in excess of the 100 square metre standard set out in Section 7 of 
the SODG 2016 for dwellings of this size. Officers are also satisfied that the relationship 
between the proposed dwellings would give rise to adequate living conditions for the 
future occupiers. Based on this assessment, the proposal would accord with the above 
policies.

6.15 Access and Parking
Criterion (iv) of Policy H4 of the SOLP 2011 also requires that there are no overriding 
highway objections. Policy T1 of the SOLP 2011 seeks to ensure that all new 
development would provide a safe and convenient access for all users of the highway. 
The Highway Liaison Officer has confirmed that the proposed access, visibility and 
parking arrangements would be adequate to serve two five-bedroom houses, subject to 
the imposition of several highway-related planning conditions. The development would 
therefore not give rise to conditions prejudicial to highway or pedestrian safety. 

6.16 Other Material Planning Considerations
The Council’s Drainage Engineer is satisfied with the submitted drainage details and a 
planning condition is recommended to secure that development proceeds in 
accordance with those details. A planning condition restricting various householder 
permitted development rights is considered necessary to enable the Council to exercise 
control over any future householder development that might otherwise result in damage 
to important trees or other visual or residential amenity harm.

6.17 Community Infrastructure Levy
The proposed dwelling is liable for the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). The CIL 
charge applied to new residential development in this case is £150 per square metre 
(subject to indexation). 15% of the CIL payment would go to Kidmore End Parish 
Council in the absence of an adopted Neighbourhood Plan.

7.0 CONCLUSION
7.1 The application proposal would comply with the relevant Development Plan Policies, 

Supplementary Planning Guidance and Government Guidance and it is considered 
that, subject to the attached conditions, the proposed development would be 
acceptable in principle, would not materially harm the character and appearance of the 
area, including the setting of the Chilterns AONB, or detract from the residential 
amenity of nearby residents. The development would also provide acceptable living 
conditions for future occupiers of the proposed dwellings and would not result in 
conditions prejudicial to highway safety.

Page 21



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 16th January 2019 

8.0 RECOMMENDATION
8.1 To delegate authority to the head of planning to grant planning permission 

subject to the following conditions:

1. Commencement of development within three years.
2. Development in accordance with the approved plans. 
3. No change in levels apart from in accordance with the approved details.
4. Tree protection implementation in accordance with approved details.
5. New vehicular access to be formed prior to occupation.
6. Close existing access.
7. Parking and turning areas to be in accordance with the approved details.
8. Landscaping implementation in accordance with the approved details.
9. Surface water and foul drainage implementation in accordance with the 

approved details.
10. Materials in accordance with submitted details.
11. Obscure glazing to the first floor north facing windows of Plot 1 and the 

first floor south facing windows of Plot 2.
12. Withdrawal of permitted development rights for extensions, outbuildings 

and hardstandings.  
13. No garage conversion into accommodation.
14. Any gates to be set back a minimum of 5 metres from the edge of the 

carriageway.
15. Vision splays to be provided prior to occupation.

Author: Paul Lucas
Email:   Planning@southoxon.gov.uk
Tel:       01235 422600

Page 22

mailto:Planning@southoxon.gov.uk


TO
KERS G

REEN LANE

little Orchard

Mulroy
Cherry Trees

Beechwood

Newlyn

Wingfield
SKARRIES VIEW

Scarletts

Tamarisk

Brickies

Lindisfarne

Donnington 
Lodge

0 50

NOTE:
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE CHECKED ON SITE AND NOT SCALED FROM 
THIS DRAWING.
FOR USE IN PRECISE NAMED LOCATION ONLY.  COPYRIGHT RESERVED.

project title

drawing title

first issued drawn scale

job/drawing no/revision

status

revision date description

The Studio, 70 Church  Road, Wheatley, Oxford,  OX33  1LZ
01865 873936 info@andersonorr.com www.andersonorr.com

1:1250 @ A4

LOCATION PLAN

03/07/18 AVDH

BEECHWOOD, TOKERS GREEN LANE,
KIDMORE END, READING, RG4 9EB

17095 - L01 -

PLANNING

Appendix A

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 8



TO
KERS G

REEN LANE

little Orchard

Mulroy
Cherry Trees

Beechwood
Newlyn

Wingfield

SKARRIES VIEW

Scarletts

Tamarisk

Brickies

Lindisfarne

Donnington 
Lodge

PLOT 1

PLOT 2

proposed 
new access

proposed post and 
rail fence with hedge 
planting behind

proposed 1.25m high brick 
piers with stone capping

proposed 0.9m facing brick 
work wall with stone capping 
and hedge planting behind

proposed post and rail 
fence with hedge 
planting behind

0 30

NOTE:
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE CHECKED ON SITE AND NOT SCALED FROM 
THIS DRAWING.
FOR USE IN PRECISE NAMED LOCATION ONLY.  COPYRIGHT RESERVED.

project title

drawing title

first issued drawn scale

job/drawing no/revision

status

revision date description

The Studio, 70 Church  Road, Wheatley, Oxford,  OX33  1LZ
01865 873936 info@andersonorr.com www.andersonorr.com

1:500  @  A2

BLOCK PLAN & STREET ELEVATION

03/07/18 AVDH

BEECHWOOD, TOKERS GREEN LANE,
KIDMORE END, READING, RG4 9EB

17095 - PP302 - C

PLANNING

A 31/08/18 amended as per planning officer's comments
B 15/10/18 balconies removed
C 19/11/18 general amendments

STREET ELEVATION - AS PROPOSED

Appendix B

Page 24



CEZ

CEZ

CEZ

CEZ

CEZ - Construction Exclusion Zone

Tree Protection in accordance with
BS5837:2012

Tree being removed

Appendix 4 - Tree Protection Plan
Revised December 2018

T1

T2

T3T4

T5

T6 - T8

T9

T10

Area for package
treatment plant

Area for field drain

P
age 25



BED 1

LIVING

DINING KITCHEN

BED 2 BED 3

HALL

BATH

GARAGE

UTILITY

STORE

WORKSHOP

HOUSE - AS EXISTING

WORKSHOP - AS EXISTING

0 5

NOTE:
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE CHECKED ON SITE
FOR USE IN PRECISE NAMED LOCATION ONLY.  COPYRIGHT RESERVED.

project title

drawing title

client name

first issued drawn scale

job/drawing no/revision

status

revision date description

The  Studio, 70 Church  Road, Wheatley, Oxford, OX33 1LZ
01865 873936 info@andersonorr.com www.andersonorr.com

1:100  @  A3

FLOOR PLANS - AS EXISTING

03/07/18 AVDH

BEECHWOOD, TOKERS GREEN LANE,
KIDMORE END, READING, RG4 9EB

BENTIER HOMES LTD.

17095 - SU001 -

SURVEY

P
age 26



2000mm

BED 5

BATH

EN SUITE

AC
BED 3

BED 4

D
R

E
S

S
IN

G

MASTER BED

shr

bath

VOID

2000mm 2000mm

shr

EN SUITE

shr

2
0

0
0

m
m

2
0

0
0

m
m

GALLERY

LANDING

2
0

0
0

m
m

2
0

0
0

m
m

BED 2

2
0

0
0

m
m

UTILITY

STUDY

CLOAK

LARDER

HALL

PLAY

LIVING

KITCHEN

COATS

DINING

FAMILY

PORCH

2000mm 2000mm

2000mm

STORAGE LANDING STORAGE

2000mm

1200mm

1200mm 1200mm

1200mm

1200mm 1200mm

2000mm

1200mm

0 5

NOTE:
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE CHECKED ON SITE AND NOT SCALED FROM 
THIS DRAWING.
FOR USE IN PRECISE NAMED LOCATION ONLY.  COPYRIGHT RESERVED.

project title

drawing title

first issued drawn scale

job/drawing no/revision

status

revision date description

The Studio, 70 Church  Road, Wheatley, Oxford,  OX33  1LZ
01865 873936 info@andersonorr.com www.andersonorr.com

1:100  @  A2

PLOT 1 FLOOR PLANS - AS PROPOSED

03/07/18 AVDH

BEECHWOOD, TOKERS GREEN LANE,
KIDMORE END, READING, RG4 9EB

17095 - PP101 - B

PLANNING

FIRST FLOORGROUND FLOOR SECOND FLOOR (LOFT)

Gross Internal Areas - Proposed Dwelling

PLOT 1:
Ground Floor - 165sqm / 1776.05sqft
First Floor   - 136sqm / 1463.89sqft
Second Floor - 23sqm / 247.57sqft
TOTAL - 324sqm / 3487.51sqft

A 31/08/18 amended as per planning officer's comments
B 15/10/18 balcony removed, glazing amended

P
age 27



2000mm

BATH

EN SUITE

AC

BED 2

GALLERY

BED 3

BED 4

D
R

E
S

S
IN

G

MASTER BED

shr

bath

VOID

2000mm2000mm

shr

EN SUITE

shr

2
0

0
0

m
m

2
0

0
0

m
m

LANDING

2
0

0
0

m
m

2
0

0
0

m
m

2
0

0
0

m
m

BED 5

2
0

0
0

m
m

UTILITY

STUDY

CLOAK

LARDER

HALL

PLAY

LIVING

KITCHEN

COATS

PORCH

DINING

FAMILY

2000mm

STORAGELANDINGSTORAGE

2000mm

1200mm

1200mm

1200mm

2000mm

1200mm

2
0

0
0

m
m

2
0

0
0

m
m

1200mm

0 5

NOTE:
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE CHECKED ON SITE AND NOT SCALED FROM 
THIS DRAWING.
FOR USE IN PRECISE NAMED LOCATION ONLY.  COPYRIGHT RESERVED.

project title

drawing title

first issued drawn scale

job/drawing no/revision

status

revision date description

The Studio, 70 Church  Road, Wheatley, Oxford,  OX33  1LZ
01865 873936 info@andersonorr.com www.andersonorr.com

1:100  @  A2

PLOT 2 FLOOR PLANS - AS PROPOSED

03/07/18 AVDH

BEECHWOOD, TOKERS GREEN LANE,
KIDMORE END, READING, RG4 9EB

17095 - PP201 - B

PLANNING

FIRST FLOORGROUND FLOOR SECOND FLOOR (LOFT)

Gross Internal Areas - Proposed Dwelling

PLOT 2:
Ground Floor - 165sqm / 1776.05sqft
First Floor   - 134sqm / 1442.36sqft
Second Floor - 17sqm / 182.986sqft
TOTAL - 316sqm / 3401.4sqft

A 31/08/18 amended as per planning officer's comments
B 15/10/18 balcony removed, glazing amended

P
age 28



obscure 
glazed

obscure 
glazed

0 5

NOTE:
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE CHECKED ON SITE AND NOT SCALED FROM 
THIS DRAWING.
FOR USE IN PRECISE NAMED LOCATION ONLY.  COPYRIGHT RESERVED.

project title

drawing title

first issued drawn scale

job/drawing no/revision

status

revision date description

The Studio, 70 Church  Road, Wheatley, Oxford,  OX33  1LZ
01865 873936 info@andersonorr.com www.andersonorr.com

1:100  @  A2

PLOT 1 ELEVATIONS - AS PROPOSED

03/07/18 AVDH

BEECHWOOD, TOKERS GREEN LANE,
KIDMORE END, READING, RG4 9EB

17095 - PE101 - B

PLANNING

EAST ELEVATION

SOUTH ELEVATION

NORTH ELEVATION

WEST ELEVATION

A 31/08/18 amended as per planning officer's comments
B 15/10/18 balcony removed, glazing amended

vertical timber clad two 
storey bay window

vertical timber 
cladding

red facing brickwork

plain clay tiles

roof lights (cill min. 
1.7m above FFL)

zinc clad dormer 

vertical timber cladding

vertical timber 
cladding red facing brickwork

plain clay tiles

velux roof lights

zinc clad dormer 

velux roof lights

zinc clad dormer 

vertical timber clad two 
storey bay window

P
age 29



obscure 
glazed

obscure 
glazed

0 5

NOTE:
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE CHECKED ON SITE AND NOT SCALED FROM 
THIS DRAWING.
FOR USE IN PRECISE NAMED LOCATION ONLY.  COPYRIGHT RESERVED.

project title

drawing title

first issued drawn scale

job/drawing no/revision

status

revision date description

The Studio, 70 Church  Road, Wheatley, Oxford,  OX33  1LZ
01865 873936 info@andersonorr.com www.andersonorr.com

1:100  @  A2

PLOT 2 ELEVATIONS - AS PROPOSED

03/07/18 AVDH

BEECHWOOD, TOKERS GREEN LANE,
KIDMORE END, READING, RG4 9EB

17095 - PE201 - B

PLANNING

EAST ELEVATION

NORTH ELEVATION

SOUTH ELEVATION

WEST ELEVATION

A 31/08/18 amended as per planning officer's comments
B 15/10/18 balcony removed, glazing amended

vertical timber clad 
bay window vertical timber 

cladding

red facing brickwork

plain clay tiles

roof lights (cill min. 
1.7m above FFL)

zinc clad dormer 

vertical timber clad 
bay window

vertical timber 
cladding

red facing brickwork

plain clay tiles

velux roof light

zinc clad dormer 

velux roof light

zinc clad dormer 

P
age 30



GARAGE

2000mm 2000mm

STUDIO

2000mm 2000mm 0 5

NOTE:
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE CHECKED ON SITE AND NOT SCALED FROM 
THIS DRAWING.
FOR USE IN PRECISE NAMED LOCATION ONLY.  COPYRIGHT RESERVED.

project title

drawing title

first issued drawn scale

job/drawing no/revision

status

revision date description

The  Studio, 70 Church  Road, Wheatley, Oxford, OX33 1LZ
01865 873936 info@andersonorr.com www.andersonorr.com

1:100  @  A3

PLOT 1 GARAGE - AS PROPOSED

31/08/18 AVDH

BEECHWOOD, TOKERS GREEN LANE,
KIDMORE END, READING, RG4 9EB

17095 - PP501 -

PLANNING
 1 : 100
GROUND FLOOR PLAN -GARAGE

 1 : 100
FIRST FLOOR PLAN GARAGE

EAST ELEVATION

NORTH ELEVATION

SOUTH ELEVATION

WEST ELEVATION

ISO

Gross Internal Areas

PLOT 1 Garage:
Double Garage - 36sqm / 387.501sqft
Studio - 14sqm / 150.695sqft

Total - 50sqm / 538.196sqft

vertical timber boarding

plain clay tiles

velux roof lights

vertical timber boarding

plain clay tiles

timber external stair to 
plot 1 studio above

vertical timber boarding

plain clay tiles

privacy screen

P
age 31



GARAGE

2000mm2000mm

STUDIO

2000mm2000mm 0 5

NOTE:
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE CHECKED ON SITE AND NOT SCALED FROM 
THIS DRAWING.
FOR USE IN PRECISE NAMED LOCATION ONLY.  COPYRIGHT RESERVED.

project title

drawing title

first issued drawn scale

job/drawing no/revision

status

revision date description

The  Studio, 70 Church  Road, Wheatley, Oxford, OX33 1LZ
01865 873936 info@andersonorr.com www.andersonorr.com

1:100  @  A3

PLOT 2 GARAGE - AS PROPOSED

31/08/18 AVDH

BEECHWOOD, TOKERS GREEN LANE,
KIDMORE END, READING, RG4 9EB

17095 - PP601 -

PLANNING
 1 : 100
GROUND FLOOR PLAN -GARAGE

 1 : 100
FIRST FLOOR PLAN GARAGE

EAST ELEVATION

NORTH ELEVATION

SOUTH ELEVATION

WEST ELEVATION

ISO

Gross Internal Areas

PLOT 2 Garage:
Double Garage - 36sqm / 387.501sqft
Studio - 14sqm / 150.695sqft

Total - 50sqm / 538.196sqft

vertical timber boarding

plain clay tiles

velux roof lights

vertical timber boarding

plain clay tiles

timber external stair to 
plot 2 studio above

vertical timber boarding

plain clay tiles

privacy screen

P
age 32



TO
KERS G

REEN LANE

little Orchard

Mulroy
Cherry Trees

Beechwood
Newlyn

Wingfield

SKARRIES VIEW

PLOT 1

PLOT 2

45.00°

45° sight line

outline of consented 
scheme (P18/S0327/FUL)

outline of existing dwelling 
to be demolished

balcony of consented 
scheme (P18/S0327/FUL)

proposed single-storey elements

location of obscure glazed 
privacy screens

single-storey element

Cherry Trees 
Ground floor plan

KEY

proposed building line 
consistent with approved 
scheme (P18/S0327/FUL)

0 30

NOTE:
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE CHECKED ON SITE AND NOT SCALED FROM 
THIS DRAWING.
FOR USE IN PRECISE NAMED LOCATION ONLY.  COPYRIGHT RESERVED.

project title

drawing title

client name

first issued drawn scale

job/drawing no/revision

status

revision date description

The  Studio, 70 Church  Road, Wheatley, Oxford, OX33 1LZ
01865 873936 info@andersonorr.com www.andersonorr.com

1:500  @  A3

ROOF PLAN - AS PROPOSED

13/08/18 AVDH

BEECHWOOD, TOKERS GREEN LANE,
KIDMORE END, READING, RG4 9EB

BENTIER HOMES LTD.

17095 - IP002 - C

INFORMATION

A 31/08/18 amended as per planning officer's comments
B 15/10/18 balconies removed
C 19/11/18 general amendments

P
age 33



dotted line indicating outline 
of house at Cherry Trees

GL 
81850

FFL
82000

FFL
83100

GL
82950TOP 

82600

0 10

NOTE:
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE CHECKED ON SITE AND NOT SCALED FROM 
THIS DRAWING.
FOR USE IN PRECISE NAMED LOCATION ONLY.  COPYRIGHT RESERVED.

project title

drawing title

first issued drawn scale

job/drawing no/revision

status

revision date description

The Studio, 70 Church  Road, Wheatley, Oxford,  OX33  1LZ
01865 873936 info@andersonorr.com www.andersonorr.com

1:200  @  A2

SITE SECTION - AS PROPOSED

03/07/18 AVDH

BEECHWOOD, TOKERS GREEN LANE,
KIDMORE END, READING, RG4 9EB

17095 - PS301 - C

PLANNING

A 31/08/18 amended as per planning officer's comments
B 15/10/18 balconies removed
C 19/11/18 general amendments

P
age 34



TO
KERS G

REEN LANE

Newlyn

G

a

r

a

g

e

R

H

5

6

.

6

3

5

3

.

2

2

T

P

E

P

E

P

8

3

.
2

5

6

7

8

2

.
8

7

3

6

8

1

.
9

6

0

5

8

2

.
2

0

1

4

8

1

.
7

7

1

3

8

0

.
4

2

0

2

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

S

T

U

D

Y

C

L

O

A

K

L

A

R

D

E

R

H

A

L

L

P

L

A

Y

L

I

V

I

N

G

K

I

T

C

H

E

N

C

O

A

T

S

D

I

N

I

N

G

F

A

M

I

L

Y

P

O

R

C

H

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

S

T

U

D

Y

C

L

O

A

K

L

A

R

D

E

R

H

A

L

L

P

L

A

Y

L

I

V

I

N

G

K

I

T

C

H

E

N

C

O

A

T

S

P

O

R

C

H

D

I

N

I

N

G

F

A

M

I

L

Y

Newlyn

SC

SC

F6

mac

mac

S

S

S

S

F

F

L

8

3

.

1

0

F

F

L

8

3

.

1

0

F

S

L

8

1

.

8

5

F

S

L

8

1

.

8

5

F

F

L

8

2

.

0

0

F

F

L

8

2

.

0

0

S

F1
F2

F3
F4

F5

F7

F8
F9

F10 S1

S2

S3

S4

S6

S5

S7

S8

S9

S10

S11

S12 S14

S13mac

mac

S

S

S

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

S

8

1

.
7

0

5.0m1:100 0m 2.5m

P1 SNN RJW Initial issue 20/11/18

P2 SNN RJW Proposed Drainage layout amended 29/11/18

P3 SNN RJW Additional impermeable membrane added. 12/12/18

NOTES

1. All dimensions and levels are in metres unless otherwise noted

2. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with the relevant
Architect's/Engineer's drawings, specifications and CDM
documentation

3. This drawings has been produced electronically and may have
been photo reduced or enlarged when copied. Work to figured
dimensions only (DO NOT SCALE). All dimensions to be checked on
site. Any errors or omissions to be reported to the engineer
immediately.

4. This drawing contains coloured lines / information that may not be
clear if reproduced in black and white.

5. Digital copies of this plan can only be considered accurate if
supplied directly by Infrastruct CS Ltd.

S4 - TECHNICAL APPROVAL

S4

DRAWNREV CHECK

DRAWING TITLE

ENGINEERSCALE @ A1

CLIENT

Infrastruct CS Ltd

PROJECT

PROJECT

DRAFT

APPROVED

SHEET NO.

ISSUE
DATEREVISION COMMENTS

ORIGIN PHASE LEVEL TYPE ROLE NO.

PROJECT NUMBER DATESTATUS

REVISION

3324

TOKE ICS 01 XX DR C

Th
e 

St
ab

le
s, 

Hi
gh

 C
og

ge
s F

ar
m

, H
ig

h 
C

og
ge

s, 
W

itn
ey

, O
X2

9 
6U

N 
- T

el
: 0

19
93

 7
09

70
9:

 in
fo

@
in

fra
str

uc
tc

s.c
o.

uk

Beechwood, Tokers Green Lane, Kidmore End,
Reading, Berkshire, RG4 9EB

Proposed Drainage

003 P3

1/1

March 18

RJW

SNN

DJ

X:\ICS Jobs\3300 Jobs\3324 - TOKE - Beechwood, Tokers Green (Anderson Orr)\01 - Drawings\01 Civil\3324-TOKE-ICS-01-XX-DR-C.dwg

50mm vent pipe to treatment plant

Drainage Key

Sewers

FW SW

Chamber Key

Foul water drain (private/non adoptable)

Surface water drain (private/non adoptable)

macmac Mini access chamber (mac) - 300mmØ *

PPIC - 475mmØ *

P.C.C. units/brick *

Adoptable demarcation manhole
within 1m of boundary *

DMDM

Manhole
Depth 1.25 to 1.5m *
Depth 1.55 to 3.0m *

* General note
(Refer to standard details & long sections for chamber sizes.
Size may need to increase dependant on number of incoming
pipes/size of incoming pipes)

RE Surface water rodding eye

Manhole reference number
Rain water down pipe  (roddable access)

Soil vent pipe/soil stack

Yard gully (150m - 200mmØ trapped)yg

Road gully (trapped) D400G

Floor gully (trapped)fg

Linear drainage channel

Cellular storage (refer to drawing for sizes)

RWP cellular discharge/collection unit

Retaining wall

FFL

XX.XX

Finished Floor Level (FFL)

Tree root protection zone (RPZ)

Silt Trap (ST) with removable silt bucketST

Permeable surfacing.
20mm N/S gravels - 450mm depth minimum

ANDERSON ORR (Survey) - t) 01865 873936
DRG: 17095-TOPO Date Received: 08/11/2018

ANDERSON ORR (Architect) - t) 01865 873936
DRG: 17095-PP301a Date Received: 08/11/2018

S

EW

NDrainage Strategy

Foul Drainage

Gravity system discharging into private treatment plant.
Treatment plant to outfall to traditional drainage field.

Individual flows less than 2m3 to ground, passing the EA 'Binding
Rules'.

Onsite drainage to be maintained by individual householders
following sale of the units.

Surface Water Drainage

Consists of interlinked gravel hardstanding and crate
soakaways. Falls on site dictate that flows should be taken to
paving at front of dwellings.

Should the design storm be exceeded, the system will overflow
at surface level to public highway.

Construction Note
It is essential that new drainage associated with the development is
laid from the outfall(s) into the site. This is essential to avoid unforeseen
obstructions where encountered (such as services). If the drainage is
laid from the site out to the outfall it can result in significant abortive
works to relay and overcome such obstructions.

Location of Public Sewers have been taken from record drawings
which should be fully substantiated by the contractor prior to
commencing works on site

All manholes covers located within carriageways shall have no slip
covers to prevent motorcycles/cycles losing control

Package Treatment Plant
8 population plant - Ensign 8 population
Sewage Treatment Plant or similar

Population Equivalent (PE) = 8P Assumed
Standard Loading = 150l / head / day
BOD Loading = 60g / head /day
Ammonia as N Loading = 8 /head/day
Cover Level = 81.70
Invert Level  = 80.571
Note-must be sited 7m from habitable dwelling

Flows based on flows and loads are 1.0m3 per
day, passing the EA binding Rules for
discharge to ground

Control panel kiosk requires
electricity supply and ducting

Treatment plant
vent to high level

Control panel kiosk requires
electricity supply and ducting

Treatment plant
vent to high level

DESIGNERS CDM NOTE - RESIDUAL RISKS IDENTIFIED

The design Engineer(s) have analysed this design as the scheme has
been developed, in order to identify if there are any significant residual
risk hazards (i.e. unusual, unexpected, abnormal or difficult).

Residual risks HAVE been identified and are therefore shown on this
drawing. These risks have not been possible to remove by design.

This statement assumes that a competent Contractor with the
appropriate qualified staff will be employed for the works, and that
they will be familiar with site wide construction risks and hazards that
they can reasonably be expected to encounter as part of their work.

 BURIED UTILITIES RISK NOTE

· Buried utilities are present on and in the vicinity of the site.
· The Contractor must satisfy themselves that they have seen utility

returns for the area and that appropriate Risk Assessment Method
Statement (RAMS) are in place and implemented to ensure that
buried and/or overhead services are located prior to any works
taking place.

· Any RAMS shall address safe procedures for protection and working
in the proximity of services.

DESIGN RISK ITEM
Surface Water system designed for a 1 in 100 year event plus an allowance of 40% for
climate change.
Impermeable areas have had an additional 10% added for urban creep.
A site specific soakage rate of f=6x10-6 m/s and Vp=16.5 s/mm have been utilised for
the soakaways and infiltration field. Soakage rate based on the worst results
encountered during on-site testing by Bentier Homes.

CDM RESIDUAL RISK ITEM
Existing services likely within working area.

Danger to site personnel and general public

CDM RESIDUAL RISK ITEM
Above Ground activities.

Possibility of objects falling from operations at

high level onto persons working or passing below.

CDM RESIDUAL RISK ITEM
Drainage pipes, manhole rings covers and fittings.

Risk of Manual handling injury.

CDM RESIDUAL RISK ITEM
Contact with waste water when making drainage

connections.

Risk of infection from Weils disease etc.

CDM RESIDUAL RISK ITEM
Works within confined spaces.

CDM RESIDUAL RISK ITEM
Works within public Highway.

Danger to site personnel and general public

CDM RESIDUAL RISK ITEM
Overhead cables within site area.

Package Treatment Plant
8 population plant - Ensign 8 population
Sewage Treatment Plant or similar

Population Equivalent (PE) = 8P Assumed
Standard Loading = 150l / head / day
BOD Loading = 60g / head /day
Ammonia as N Loading = 8 /head/day
Cover Level = 81.70
Invert Level  = 80.779

Note-must be sited 7m from habitable dwelling

Flows based on flows and loads are 1.0m3 per
day, passing the EA binding Rules for
discharge to ground

Gravel Trench
15.0 x 0.60 x 1.0m (dp)

Gravel Trench
15.0 x 0.60 x 1.0m (dp)

Infiltration Trench

Impermeable barrier to stop
lateral movement of water

Open Graded Sub Base with Asphalt Surfacing
350mm depth Type 3 Required.

Channel drain to ensure
no private flows enter
the highway network.
Flows to be taken to
Open Graded Sub-Base.

Field Drain

4no. 2.9m x 0.3m trenches, to detail on drawing
3324-10, including 100mmØ perforated distributor pipes.
Min. Separation distance between trenches = 2m.
Max. Distributor pipe gradient < 1 in 200
To be located 15m away from buildings.
Cover Level = As existing
Invert Level = (500-1000mm depth to invert)

DESIGN PARAMETERS:
PE=7 VP= 16.5 s/mm f=6.0x10-6 m/s

Exact location to be confirmed on site.
To be sited at base of slope.

Field area (Treatment Plant)= Population x Vp x 0.20
    7.0x16.5x0.20 = 23.1m2

Root protection barrier to be installed where trench
abutts tree roots.

Private rear patio.
375mm Type 3 Sub-base required.

Baffle to prevent rapid through flow
of water through permeable paving

Channel drain to drain
private patio areas.
Flows to be taken to
Open Graded Sub-Base.

Channel drain to drain
private patio areas.
Flows to be taken to
Open Graded Sub-Base.

Drainage Field Distributor Pipe

Drainage Field Trench

RWP to
discharge
to channel

RWP to
discharge
to channel

P
age 35



TO
KERS G

REEN LANE

Cherry Trees

Newlyn

PLOT 1

PLOT 2Beechwood

plot 1 garage / 
studio

plot 2 garage / 
studio

5 bar 
gate

existing trees retained and 
existing hedge extended to 
front boundary

existing trees to be retained

proposed tree planting

root protection areas

existing dwelling to be 
demolished shown dashed 

parking & 
turning area existing access 

closed

proposed new access

existing 1.8m high fence to be retained

proposed tree planting along 
newly formed driveway

proposed post and rail fence with 
hedge planting behind

proposed 1.25m high brick 
piers with stone capping

proposed 0.9m facing brick 
work wall with stone capping 
and hedge planting behind

proposed post and rail 
fence with hedge 
planting behind

proposed 2.0m high brick 
piers with stone capping

waste bin and 
recycling storage

waste and recycling 
collection

cycle storage

existing mature trees at 
Newlyn provide additional 
screening of Beechwood

5 bar 
gate

parking & 
turning area

proposed tree and hedge 
planting along newly 
formed driveway

waste bin and 
recycling storage

existing hedgerows 
to be retained

cycle storage

100-Fagus sylvatica

110-Fagus sylvatica

2-Acer campestre

1-Prunus padus

1-Prunus avium

4-Carpinus betulus 'Frans Fontaine'2-Quercus ilex

6-Quercus ilex PLEACHED

2 Acer campestre 14-16 CM
4 Carpinus betulus 'Frans Fontaine' 12-14 CM
1 Prunus avium 12-14 CM
1 Prunus padus 12-14 CM
2 Quercus ilex 16-18 CM
6 Quercus ilex PLEACHED 12-14 CM

Management and Establishment

Trees to be planted with stake, tie and watering tube, and watered regularly by developer until 
hand-over to domestic home owner.

Maintenance guidelines for domestic home owner to be issued upon practical completion and will 
include:

1. Weekly watering of trees and hedges particularly in the first two growing seasons. (A guide to the 
amount of water required: 12-14cmg trees 25 litres per week and 16-18cmg trees 80 litres per week).
2. Monthly weeding (more often as required) to maintain a tidy site and keep the mulched area at the 
base of trees and hedging clear of weeds.
3. Regular lawn cutting from March to Nov to maintain a healthy lawn. Weed and feed in Spring. Rake 
out thatch and spike to aerate in Autumn.
4. Annual bark mulch top up to planting beds in autumn to help retain moisture and suppress weeds.
5. Annual maintenance hedge cutting in June/July.
6. Tree ties to be loosened periodically as required and stakes and ties to be removed after 3-5 years 
once fully established.

00 1 2 3 4 5 M

210 Fagus sylvatica 1.00M HT

Client

Drawing

Drawn ByDateScale

Drawing No File Name
© Creative Landscape Co Ltd

The Big Plant Nursery, Wargrave Road, Twyford, Reading RG10 9PN
Tel: 0118 9341500 Fax: 0118 9346768

email: info@creative-landscape.co.uk
www.creative-landscape.co.uk

All dimensions to be checked on site and not scaled from this drawing.
Discrenpancies and alterations to be referred to the designer.

BEECHWOOD, TOKERS GREEN LANE

Planting Plan - Trees

HS05/11/181:200 @ A2

BEN BEN0511.vwx

Revision

A

C

B

D

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 36



Garage

P
&
R
 
F
E
N
C
E
 
1.2
m
H

P
&
R
 
F
E
N
C
E
 
1.2
m
H

BRI
CK 

RET
AIN

ING
 WA

LL

NEW
 PO

RCH

FIVE
 BA

R G
ATE

R
ID
G
E
 
8
6
.7
3

EAVES 
84.41

RID
GE 

86.
44

EAV
ES 

84.
26

RID
GE 

90.
67

RID
GE 

90.
67

R
ID
G
E
 
9
0
.6
7

RID
GE 

89.
44

RID
GE 

89.
39

EAV
ES 

88.
30

RID
GE=

90.
20

R
ID
G
E
 
9
0
.6
9

RID
GE 

87.
53

EAV
ES 

84.
96

RH
56.63

53.22

TP

EP

EP

EP

DPC
82.90

82.90DPC

IL 81.37MH CL 82.01100mm Foul

IL 82.11MH CL 82.81100mm Foul

83.38

82.67

82
.7

1

82.80
85.17

86.52

83.88
83.81

MH CL 81.99

84.34

GU CL 82.78

MH's CL 82.02

GU

85.59

84.16

82.74

82.51

82.25 82.20

82.93

82.84

82.84

82.82

83.33

86.69

85.70

86.47

86.69

85.08

85.38

86.58

85.00

81.92

83.47

81.64

81.86

86.05

83.61

85.59

86.62

87.10

84.73

81.47

86.69

87.23

81.72

81.61

81.7181.48

86.71

85.09

81.53

84.06

81.75

82.63

81.86

81.37

81.35

81.5181.51

87.33

81.59

81.72

80.37

83.0183.20

83.04
83.04

83
.0

5

83.08

82.99

82.87

82.9283.07

82.67

82.66

82.66

82.72

82.75

82.75

82.67

82.61

82.60

82.57

82.41

81.98

81.84

81.67

81.41

82.89

82.99

82.58

82.50

82.41

82.20

82.04

81.63

81.41

81.13

80.88
80.65

80.51

81.4381.46

82.05

82.31

81.81

81.31

80.87

80.70 80.65
80.53

85.05

84.91
84.70

84.86

85.01

85.01

83.71
83.59

83.48

83.40

83.40

82.83

82.88

83.38

83.46 83.37

82.78

82.72

83.23

83.23

82.88

82.58
79.91

80.04

80.10

80.10
80.18

80.31

80.45

80.34

80.26

80.40

80.71

80.98

80.91

80.62

80.37

80.17

79.93

80.65

81.23

86.94

86.42

86.45

86.66

85.66

85.28

84.90

84.38
84.25

84.80

84.58

84.14

83.73

83.83

83.35

84.13

84.05

83.25

82.67

81.89

81.68

81.44

81.41

81.52

81.50
81.44

82.03

82.22

82.84

83.18

82.81

82.78

82.71

82.66

82.85

86.04

85.93

85.41

85.63

85.23

84.45

84.87

85.03

84.74

84.27

84.50

84.61

84.32

84.22

83.88

84.08

83.67

83.54

81.70

81.92

82.23

81.87

81.70

82.32

82.73

82.70

82.65

82.31

82.00 81.65

81.79

81.26

80.81
80.51

79.97

80.28

80.52

80.82

81.02

81.35

82.30

82.48

82.88

82.62

82.22

82.14
82.09

82.07 81.99

82.02

82.21

81.56 81.52

81.44

81.41

83.21

83.13

82.91

82.35

82.33
82.52

82.53

82.67

80.51
81.24

81.35

81.51

80.86

80.93

80.81

81.14

80.89

80.54

86.59

86
.3

6

86.68

86.41

86
.4

2

85.84

86.26
86.13

85.94
86.04

85.75

85.55

85.87

85.35

84.95

85.27

85.06

85.11

84.54

83.80

83.51

83.66

83.41

83.12

83.09

82.95

82.74

82.44

82.79

82.55

82.18

81.97

81.31

80.86

82.81

82.85

82.85

82.91
82.87

82.86

82.66

87.66

88.78

84.25

86.74

82.99

83.05

87.30

87.27

87.34

87.26

81.90

86.31

86.08

85.99

86.04

86.06

86.08

86.18

86.3986.48

86.40111

85.09110

84.3518

83.2567

82.8736

81.9605

82.2014

81.7713

80.4202

80.0481

Planting Bed

Planting Bed

Stump

4m

2m

3m

CabinetElectricity

Approx. line of boundary

NEWLYN

GLEBELANDS

TOKERS GREEN LANE

Edge Of Road

Edge Of Road

Edge Of Road

Edge Of Road

Edge Of Road

Asphalt

Typ. 1.8mBushes

Grass
Bush

Conifer

PostFenceMetal

PostFenceMetal

PostFenceMetal

Fence 1.75m
Open Weave

Concrete

Paving

Concrete

Screen 1.8m

8m
8m

8m8m

12m

Holly Screen 2.4m

Fence Change

Closedboard Fence 1.8m

5m

Post & Wire / Chestnut Pailing 0.95m

Bushes

BEECHWOOD

Holly Bushes 3m

0.75mWall

PavingConcrete

Canopy

R
etaining W

all 0.75m

W
all 0.65m

R
etaining

C
oncrete Paving

PavingConcrete

Fruit

Greenhouse

2m

Shed

Concrete Paving

Fence 1.1mPost & Wire

fence post

3m

4m

3m

Grass

20m

15m

15m

15m

18m

Grass

Fir

Stump

Privet

Gate posts

Concrete

Tap

Gas

Up

Wooden post

Hedge 2m

12m

Cypress Screen 2.8m

21m

21m

Post & Wire 1.55m

Settlement Chamber

W.L 81.29

N.P.V.Surcharged

PostsSupport

Paving

Post & Wire Fence 1.3m

Closedboard Fence 1.80m

Bush

Stump

Stump

H
ol

ly
 S

cr
ee

n 
4m

P
os

t a
nd

 ra
il 

Fe
nc

e 
1.

45
m

Li
ne

 o
f M

et
al

 F
en

ce
 P

os
ts

8m

Hedge 2m

Hedge 1.90m

11m

RWP

Up

Planting

Eave
H

ed
ge

 2
m

Grass

Asphalt

BaseConcrete

Step
Up

Planting Bed

Shed
Shed

Shed

PavingConcrete

C
on

cr
et

e

Concrete

16mFir

Fir

14m

18m

15m

16m

15m

Stump

Stump

Stump

Chainlink Fence 1.20m

5m

Garage

Asphalt

Asphalt

BankConcrete

BankConcrete

10m

Planting

Planting

Asphalt

Grass

6m

Hedge 1.90m
BaseConcrete

4m

18m

Bush

6m

13m

15m

20m

4m

8m

Stump

Stump

Stump

Stump

Stump

8m

WM

SC

SC

Old iron

Old iron fence post

Old iron fence post

PostFence

PostFence

PostFence

Ash

Oak

Beech

Cherry

Cherry

Laurel

Beech

Prunus

Cherry

Beech

Cherry

Silver birch

Holly

Beech

Ash

Rowan

Beech

Fruit

Beech

Maple

Cypress

Cypress

Cypress

Prunus

Holly

HazelBeech

Ash

Cypress

Ash

Oak

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

SVP

RS

Ridge

Ridge

Eave

Ridge

Threshold

Threshold

GARAGE

0 10

NOTE:
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE CHECKED ON SITE AND NOT SCALED FROM 
THIS DRAWING.
FOR USE IN PRECISE NAMED LOCATION ONLY.  COPYRIGHT RESERVED.

project title

drawing title

first issued drawn scale

job/drawing no/revision

status

revision date description

The Studio, 70 Church  Road, Wheatley, Oxford,  OX33  1LZ
01865 873936 info@andersonorr.com www.andersonorr.com

1:200  @  A1

TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY

12/20/17 CH

BEECHWOOD, TOKERS GREEN LANE,
KIDMORE END, READING, RG4 9EB

17095 - TOPO -

SURVEY

P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 16 January 2019

APPLICATION NO. P18/S3443/FUL
APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION
REGISTERED 15.10.2018
PARISH DIDCOT
WARD MEMBER(S) Anthony Dearlove

Vacant position for Didcot South ward
Mocky Khan

APPLICANT Total Land & Property Developments Ltd
SITE 35 Park Road Didcot, OX11 8QL
PROPOSAL Variation of conditions 2- approved plans and 11- 

protected species survey report on application ref 
P18/S0995/FUL.

Two semi-detached houses replacing existing chalet 
bungalow (As amended by drawing PRD.11 Rev A 
received 4 July 2018 showing a shared access and 
amplified by Protected Species Survey Report dated 
July 2018 received 9 July 2018)

OFFICER David Millinship

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 The application has been referred to planning committee as the applicant is related to 

the Leader of South Oxfordshire District Council – Councillor Jane Murphy. 

1.2 The application site comprises a detached one and half storey dwelling on Park Road, 
Didcot. The ridge line runs north to south making the gable ends the sides of the 
building.  The building is not listed and not located within a designated area. Number 
37 Park Road to the south is a two-storey dwelling with number 33 to the north also a 
one and half storey dwelling but, of a different design to the application property.  

1.3 Planning permission for the demolition of the existing house and construction of two 
semi-detached houses was granted by planning committee on 17 August 2018. The 
existing house has been demolished and work commenced on the foundations of the 
two permitted dwellings. 

1.4 The site is identified on the Ordnance Survey Extract attached at Appendix 1.

2.0 PROPOSAL
2.1 This application seeks a variation to condition 2 of planning permission P18/S0995/FUL 

to allow an increased depth to single storey rear projections of the two dwellings. 
Information to discharge condition 11 (protected species survey) has also been 
submitted. 

2.2 Reduced copies of the plans accompanying the application are attached at Appendix 
2. Full copies of the plans and consultation responses are available for inspection on 
the Council’s website at www.southoxon.gov.uk

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
Full responses can be found on the Council’s website.

Page 39

Agenda Item 9

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/S3443/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 16 January 2019

3.1 Didcot Town Council – Objection (01/11/2018) – An initial objection was made on 
grounds of overdevelopment but, this was due to incorrect information contained within 
the Design and Access Statement. 

No objection (13/12/2018) - After submission of a corrected DAS the objection was 
withdrawn. 

Countryside Officer - No objection – the alteration to condition 11 wording is agreed. 

Forestry Officer - No objection - subject to securing the proposed tree protection by 
condition. 

Highways Liaison Officer - No objection – subject to coniditions to secure safe 
access and parking/turning areas.

Contaminated Land - No objection – the submitted questionnaire has been reviewed 
and the land does not appear to be (or have the potential to be) contaminated.  

3.2 Neighbour Responses
One letter received stating that the existing boundary fence is in a poor state of repair 
and will need replacing to maintain security, privacy and integrity during build and 
afterwards. 

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
4.1 P18/S0995/FUL - Approved (17/08/2018)

Two new semi-detached houses replacing existing chalet bungalow (As amended by 
drawing PRD.11 Rev A received 4 July 2018 showing a shared access and amplified by 
Protected Species Survey Report dated July 2018 received 9 July 2018).

P18/S0135/PEM - Other Outcome (05/02/2018)
Demolish existing bungalow.  Build new two storey block of flats, comprising 2 x 2 bed 
and 4 x 1 bed, courtyard parking, bin and cycle stores, landscaped garden.

5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE
5.1 South Oxfordshire Core Strategy (SOCS) Policies:

CS1  -  Presumption in favour of sustainable development;
CSDID3  -  New housing at Didcot;
CSB1  -  Conservation and improvement of biodiversity;
CSQ3  -  Design. 

5.2 South Oxfordshire Local Plan (SOLP) Policies:
C8  -  Adverse affect on protected species;
CSS1  -  The Overall Strategy;
D1  -  Principles of good design;
D2  -  Safe and secure parking for vehicles and cycles;
D3  -  Outdoor amenity area;
D4  -  Reasonable level of privacy for occupiers;
G2  -  Protect district from adverse development; 
H4  -  Housing sites in towns and larger villages outside Green Belt;
T1  -  Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users;
T2  -  Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users. 

5.3 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents:

South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (SODG 2016)

Page 40

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/S0995/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/S0135/PEM


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 16 January 2019

5.4 National Planning Policy & Guidance:

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
National Planning Policy Framework Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 When considering applications to vary or remove planning conditions local planning 

authorities shall consider only the question of the conditions subject to which planning 
permission should be granted, and—

a) if they decide that planning permission should be granted subject to conditions 
differing from those subject to which the previous permission was granted, or 
that it should be granted unconditionally, they shall grant planning permission 
accordingly, and

b) if they decide that planning permission should be granted subject to the same 
conditions as those subject to which the previous permission was granted, they 
shall refuse the application.

The main issues to be considered are whether the proposed amendments to the 
scheme: 

 Impact on the character and appearance of the site and surrounding area;
 Impact on neighbouring amenities;
 Impact on protected species;
 Effect on any other matters (trees and parking); and
 Whether any other planning conditions attached to the original planning 

permission should be reapplied or require amendment. 

6.2
Character and appearance
The approved scheme for the construction of a semi-detached pair was considered to 
be acceptable in terms of its visual impact as there is little uniformity between existing 
buildings within the wider street scene, particularly along the eastern side of Park Road. 
The western side of Park Road is predominantly lined by semi-detached dwellings so 
they are characteristic of the wider area. 

6.3 The proposed variation to the design of the semi-detached pair would exclusively relate 
to the single storey rear kitchen/family room sections of the dwellings. It is proposed to 
increase the depth of the rear sections of both dwellings by approximately 2 metres. 
The rear projection would remain as a small-scale single storey flat roof structure and 
the increased depth would not cause harm to the visual impact of the development over 
and above that previously assessed. 

6.4 Additional information relating to the proposed external materials and finishes has also 
been provided. The palette of materials proposed uses materials common to the street 
scene and given the traditional form of the proposed dwellings I view this as 
acceptable. The development would remain in accordance with SOCS policy CSQ3 and 
SOLP policies D1 and G2. 

6.5
Impact on neighbours
The additional 2 metre depth of the rear projections would not have the potential to 
impact on neighbouring access to daylight or privacy. The rear projections are set away 
from the intervening boundaries shared with neighbouring properties so even with an 
increased depth they would have a marginal impact on neighbouring residential 
amenities over and above the larger two-storey section of the semi-detached pair.   

Page 41



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 16 January 2019

6.6 I am satisfied the development would remain in accordance with the aims of SOCS 
policy CSQ3 and SOLP policies D3 and D4. 

6.7
Biodiversity
Condition 11 of the original planning permission sought to secure the following:

“The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with 
the recommendations of Section 6 of the supporting Protected Species Survey 
Report (Windrush Ecology Ltd, July 2018, Ref: W2904_rep_35 Park Road, 
Didcot_09-07-18).  Any variation shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority before such change is made.” 

6.8 The applicant has confirmed that a bat box has been installed at the site in accordance 
with the recommendations of the previous ecology report. The Countryside Officer is 
satisfied that the wording of condition 11 can be amended to read as follows:

A single Schwegeler 1WQ bat box shall be erected on the development hereby 
approved in an appropriate location. This condition shall be discharged through 
the submission of evidence to the local planning authority to demonstrate that 
the bat box has been installed in accordance with this condition.

Reason: To enhance the biodiversity resource of the site, in accordance with 
Policy CSB1 of the SOCS, Policies C6 and C8 of the SOLP and paragraph 170 
of the NPPF.

6.9 Subject to the revised condition wording the development is considered to remain in 
accordance with SOCS policy CSB1 and policies C6 and C8 of the SOLP. 

6.10
Other matters
No objections have been received from the council’s Contaminated Land Officer. The 
land contamination questionnaire submitted with the application demonstrates that the 
site is not at risk from contamination and as such no further planning control is required. 

6.11 OCC Highways have asked for planning conditions to secure provision of off-road 
parking and turning areas as well as improvements to the site access. I consider these 
conditions remain reasonable and necessary to ensure the development is in 
compliance with the aims of SOLP policies D2 and T1. 

6.12 SODC’s Forestry Officer has also offered no objection to the revised scheme providing 
a condition is attached requiring the implementation of the tree protection measures set 
out on the submitted shed and fencing plan (PRD.11 REV.D). It is advised that a 
condition should be attached requiring the implementation of the landscaping shown on 
the same plan. Both conditions are considered to be reasonable and necessary. 

Planning conditions 
6.13 When a local planning authority approve a variation or removal of condition application 

it is effectively issuing a new planning permission. As such, conditions attached to the 
original permission can be altered (if necessary) to reflect a discharge of condition 
details or in some cases that the conditions are no longer relevant (due to a change in 
policy or site circumstances for example). 

6.14 In this case, details to discharge several planning conditions have been submitted but, 
appear yet to be agreed by the LPA. It is, however, considered the original planning 
permission has commenced. As such, it is pertinent to review the conditions of the 

Page 42



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 16 January 2019

original planning permission and to assess whether they are still reasonable and 
necessary.

Condition 1 – Three Year Time limit, no longer relevant as the development has 
commenced. Can be varied to remain as per the original three year date;

Condition 2 – Approved plans, to be varied as per the currently submitted plan 
numbers;

Condition 3 – Schedule of materials, varied to a directive condition as per details 
provided on plan no PRD.11 Rev.D;

Condition 4 – Varied to a directive condition as per details provided on plan no PRD.11 
Rev.D;

Condition 5 – PD removal (householder Class A) remain as original wording;

Condition 6 – Access provision as per original condition;

Condition 7 – Visibility as per original condition;

Condition 8 – Parking and turning areas as per original condition;

Condition 9 – Varied to a directive condition as per details provided on plan no PRD.11
Rev.D;

Condition 10 – Varied to a directive condition as per details provided on plan no 
PRD.11 Rev.D;

Condition 11 – Varied to Countryside Officer’s agreed wording;

7.0 CONCLUSION
7.1

7.2

Officers recommend that planning permission is granted because the proposed 
variation of conditions and resulting minor-material changes to the previously approved 
scheme are not considered to generate any adverse impacts that would cause harm to 
the character and appearance of the site and street scene in the locality or the 
amenities of the area over and above that previously assessed. The habitat value of the 
site for protected species would also be preserved. 

The revised scheme therefore remains in accordance with the relevant development 
plan policies and subject to the above-mentioned conditions it would remain a 
sustainable form of development in line with policy CS1 of the South Oxfordshire Core 
Strategy. 

8.0 RECOMMENDATION
8.1 To delegate authority to the head of planning to grant planning permission 

subject to the following conditions:

1. Approved plans.
2. External materials.
3. Obscure glazing.
4. Permitted development removal (Householder – Class A).
5. Access provision.
6. Visibility splays.
7. Parking and turning areas.

Page 43



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 16 January 2019

8. Landscaping scheme.
9. Tree protection.
10.  Protected species mitigation. 

Author:         David Millinship
Contact No:  01235 422600 
Email:           planning@southoxon.gov.uk

 

Page 44



Appendix 1

Page 45

Agenda Item 9



APPENDIX 2 – APPLICATION PLANS 

 

 

 

 

Page 46



 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee  – 16 January 2019

APPLICATION NO. P18/S3345/FUL
APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION
REGISTERED 5.10.2018
PARISH DIDCOT
WARD MEMBER(S) Anthony Dearlove

Vacant position for Didcot South ward
Mocky Khan

APPLICANT Mr Ferhat Bakabala
SITE Delight 2 Kebab & Pizza House 100 Broadway 

Didcot, OX11 8AB
PROPOSAL Variation of condition 2 (neighbour amenity) on 

application reference P10/W0325 to extend opening 
hours of hot food take-away to:

Monday to Wednesday 11.00 to 00.30
Thursday to Saturday 11.00 to 03.30
Sunday - 11.00 to 00.30

OFFICER Kim Gould

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 This application has been referred to Planning Committee because the 

recommendation to approve temporary planning permission conflicts with the views of 
the Didcot Town Council.

1.2 The site is an end of terrace property which lies on the northern side of Broadway. 
These premises are in an A5 hot food takeaway use. The building is a three-storey, 
end terrace in a row of units with commercial uses on the ground floor and residential 
accommodation above. An OS extract showing the location of the site is attached as 
Appendix 1.

1.3 The A5 use of the ground floor property was granted planning permission on 15 July 
2003 under application P03/W0079 and was subject to a number of conditions. The 
original condition 5 read as follows.

“That the premises shall not open after 11.00pm Sunday to Thursday nor after 
11.30pm on Friday and Saturdays.  

Reason.  To ensure that the development was not unneighbourly in accordance with 
policy G9 of the adopted SOLP.”

1.4 On 4 May 2010 planning permission was granted to vary condition 5 of planning 
permission P03/W0079 to ‘allow the premises to be open to the public between 09:00-
11:30 Monday to Wednesday, 09:00-00:00 Thursday to Saturday and 12:00-23:30 on 
Sundays’ under application P10/W0325.

1.5 In May 2018, an alleged breach of planning control was reported to the Local Planning 
Authority regarding the opening of the premises until 03:00. As a result of the 
enforcement investigations, the applicant has agreed to open only during the hours 
approved under P10/W0325 until the outcome of this current planning application is 

Page 49

Agenda Item 10

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/S3345/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee  – 16 January 2019

known. This compliance is further corroborated by the opening times now advertised 
on Google maps and those on the company website.

2.0 PROPOSAL
2.1 This application is made under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

and seeks to vary condition 02 of planning permission P10/W0325 to increase the 
opening times of the premises.

2.2 The original condition 5 of P03/W0079 has already been varied by application 
P10/W0325 as follows

“The use of the premises hereby permitted shall be restricted to:

Monday to Wednesday   9.00  to 23.30
Thursday to Saturday     9.00  to 24:00
Sundays                         12:00 to 23.30 

Reason: To safeguard the amenity of neighbouring residents in accordance with 
Policies EP2 and E8 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011.”

2.3 This application seeks a further variation to the opening hours to:

Monday to Wednesday   11.00 to 00.30
Thursday to Saturday     11.00 to 03.30
Sunday                           11.00 to 00.30

2.4 In the supporting statement, the agent states that the alteration to opening hours will be 
in line with the licensing hours permitted in May 2018. The license for the premises 
allows opening hours as follows:

Monday to Wednesday – 11.00 to 00.30
Thursday to Saturday – 11.00 to 03.30
Sunday – 11.00 to 00.30

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
3.1 Didcot Town Council – Object

 Didcot Town Council deems a 3.30am closing time to be unacceptable in a semi- 
residential area with neighbours almost directly opposite.

 Concerns over the potential for anti-social behaviour in a semi-residential area

Env. Protection Team - No objections to this variation to extend the opening hours

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
4.1 SE18/271 -  (08/11/2018)

Alleged opening to 3am in breach of condition

WE09/129 -  (17/05/2010)
Remaining open beyond the times stipulated in planning permission P03/W0079 (that 
the premises shall not open after 11.00pm Sunday to Thursday nor after 11.30pm on 
Fridays and Saturdays)

P10/W0325 - Approved (04/05/2010)
Variation of condition of 5 (restricted opening hours) of planning permission P03/W0079 
to allow premises to be open to the public between 09:00-11:30 Monday to 

Page 50

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=SE18/271
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=WE09/129
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P10/W0325


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee  – 16 January 2019

Wednesday, 09:00-00:00 Thursday to Saturday and 12:00-23:30 on Sundays. 
(resubmission of planning application P09/W0940).

P09/W0940 - Refused (24/11/2009)
Variation of condition 5 (restricted opening hours) of planning permission P03/W0079 to 
allow premises to open to the public between 9:00 - 1:00 Monday to Saturday and 
12:00 - 23:00 on Sundays.

P03/W0079 - Approved (15/07/2003)
Ground floor  change of use to A3 take away fast food and single storey extension to 
rear of property.  (As amended by plans and details accompanying letter from the John 
Phillips Planning Consultancy dated 9th May 2003).

5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE
5.1 South Oxfordshire Core Strategy (SOCS) Policies

CS1  -  Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSS1 – The overall strategy
CSDID1 – The central area of Didcot – regeneration of The Broadway

5.2 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 (SOLP 2011) policies;

EP2  -  Adverse affect by noise or vibration
D5  -  Compatible mix of uses

5.3 Neighbourhood Plan policies; Not applicable.

5.4 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents

South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (SODG 2016)

5.5 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

National Planning Policy Framework Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 When assessing section 73 applications the Council can only consider the original 

condition and the reasons for applying the condition; new conditions can be attached 
but only in so far as they apply to the original condition. If the Council decides that 
planning permission should be granted subject to the same conditions as those subject 
to which the previous permission was granted, they should refuse the application

6.2 Paragraph 015 of NPPG notes where an application under section 73 is granted, the
effect is the issue of a new planning permission, sitting alongside the original
permission, which remains intact. It further advises that to assist with clarity
decision notices for the grant of planning permission under section 73 should also
repeat the relevant conditions from the original planning permission, unless they have
already been discharged

6.3 As this Section 73 application relates to the extension of opening hours the key 
consideration is the impact of the additional hours on the amenity of occupiers of 
neighbouring properties.

Page 51

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P09/W0940
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P03/W0079


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee  – 16 January 2019

6.4 Policy EP2 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan seeks to ensure that proposals which 
would by reason of noise or vibrations have an adverse effect on existing or proposed 
occupiers, will not be permitted. In addition, noise sensitive development will not be 
permitted close to existing or proposed sources of significant noise and vibrations.

6.5 In this case, there is an existing hot food takeaway establishment at this address. The 
proposed increase in opening hours is unlikely to have any adverse effect on the 
existing occupiers of residential properties in the locality according to the council’s 
Environmental Protection Team. As such, it would not be appropriate to recommend 
this application for refusal without having the technical support to substantiate such a 
refusal reason at appeal.

There are several other hot food takeaway establishments along Broadway. None of 
these open as late as proposed by this planning application. The Broadway Public 
house does, however, open until 3am on a Friday and Saturday.

6.6 The Town Council’s concern for neighbour amenity is acknowledged. It is therefore 
recommended that planning permission is granted for the additional opening hours for a 
temporary period of 12 months only to allow the situation to be monitored. The 
applicant would have to reapply within 12 months for a permanent consent. Any 
complaints regarding noise and disturbance received during this period would be 
considered when assessing an application for the permanent extension of opening 
hours. 

6.7 Attached to the 2003 planning permission were a number of conditions. A copy of the 
decision notice is attached as Appendix 2. When a Local Planning Authority approves 
a variation of condition application, it is effectively issuing a new planning permission. 
As such, conditions attached to the original permission can be altered (if necessary) to 
reflect a discharge of condition or in some cases the conditions are no longer relevant 
(due to a change in policy or site circumstances for example).

6.8 In this case, the original planning permission has commenced i.e. the change of use 
has occurred, and the extension has been built. As such, it is pertinent to review the 
conditions of the original planning permission to assess whether they are still 
reasonable and necessary.

1. Five-year time limit – no longer relevant as the development has commenced
2. Matching materials – The extension has been built so this is no longer relevant
3. A scheme for fume extraction to be submitted – there is no record of this 

condition having been discharged. This condition is therefore recommended in 
relation to this current application.

4. The accommodation above ground floor – this should be included as it is an on-
going requirement.

5. Hours of opening – these are to be replaces with the hours requested by this 
variation of condition application.

6.9 Community Infrastructure Levy
This proposal is not CIL liable.

7.0 CONCLUSION
7.1 I recommend that temporary planning permission is granted because these premises 

currently have a license to open during the hours proposed under this planning 
application. There has been no objection from the council’s Environmental Protection 
Team in relation to the proposed increase in opening hours. In view of the Town 
Council’s objection on neighbour amenity grounds, the application is recommended for 

Page 52



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee  – 16 January 2019

a 1-year temporary consent to enable the situation to be monitored during that period. 
As such, subject to the recommended conditions, the proposal accords with 
Development Plan policy and is recommended for approval.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION
8.1 To delegate authority to the head of planning to grant planning permission 

subject to the attached conditions:

1. Temporary permission for one year.  
2. Scheme for detailed method of fume extraction to be submitted.
3. First floor accommodation to be occupied by person employed by the A5 

use.
4. Hours of use.

Author:                Kim Gould
Contact No:         01235 422600
e-mail:                 planning@southoxon.gov.uk

 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Page 55

Agenda Item 10



Appendix 2

Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee  – 16 January 2019

APPLICATION NO. P18/S2253/FUL
APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION
REGISTERED 2.7.2018
PARISH ROTHERFIELD GREYS
WARD MEMBERS David Nimmo-Smith

Charles Bailey
APPLICANT Mr Clive Hemsley
SITE Grey Meadows Rotherfield Greys, RG9 4QJ
PROPOSAL Removal of condition 6 -  laying out and construction 

of an access, driveway or other hard standing on 
application ref P17/S1779/FUL (as clarified by 
amended application form)

Proposed removal of existing timber building and 
separate store and erection of a replacement 
purpose-built art studio and store for private use.

OFFICER Tom Wyatt

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 This application is referred to Planning Committee because of the Parish Council’s 

objection.  

1.2 The application site, which is shown on the OS extract attached as Appendix A, lies 
in a rural location to the rear of a property known as Greys End, which along with the 
neighbouring housing to the south west and north east, is a substantial property set 
within large spacious grounds.  The site is located within the Chilterns Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty.   

1.3 Planning permission has recently been granted under application P17/S1779/FUL for 
the removal of an existing timber building and store and erection of a replacement art 
studio and store for private use. 

2.0 PROPOSAL
2.1 The application seeks the removal of Condition 6 of planning permission 

P17/S1779/FUL, which restricts the construction of hardstanding, including that relating 
to an access or driveway.  The wording of the condition is as follows: 

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country (General Permitted 
Development Order) 2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order), no 
development comprising of the formation, laying out and construction of an access, 
driveway or other hardstanding within the application site shall be undertaken without 
the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: The specific circumstances of this site warrant the Local Planning Authority 
having control over any further development as specified in the condition in the 
interests of amenity and in accordance with Policies CSEN1 of the South Oxfordshire 
Core Strategy and G2, D1, G3, G4 and E8 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011.

2.2 The application submission advises that the removal of the condition is sought to allow 
the provision of a temporary access to facilitate the construction of the artist’s studio.  
The application submission further advises that the access would be removed and the 

Page 61

Agenda Item 11

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/S2253/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee  – 16 January 2019

land reinstated following the construction period.  Works to provide the temporary 
access have already taken place. The approved site plan relating to application 
P17/S1779/FUL is attached as Appendix B whilst other documentation associated with 
this application and the current application can be viewed on the council’s website, 
www.southoxon.gov.uk. 

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
3.1 Rotherfield Greys Parish Council – Objects to the removal of the condition and the 

driveway should be removed. 

Forestry Officer – There is a lack of information regarding the nature of the temporary 
access.  

Highways Liaison Officer (Oxfordshire County Council) - No objections subject to 
reinstatement of the highway verge. 

Neighbours – Two representations of objection received: 
- The condition should not be removed
- Erosion of landscape qualities of the AONB
- Impact on highway safety from intensified access
- Concern about longer term ambitions for the use of the site

One representation with no objections based on the provision of a temporary access 
during construction works.  

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
4.1 SE18/323 -  

Breach of condition 6 of planning permission P17/S1779/FUL. Formation of driveway.

P17/S1779/FUL - Approved (21/07/2017)
Variation of Condition 2 of P16/S2721/FUL for an alternative design, form and siting of 
the approved art studio with reference to amended drawing 1101.PL.004e.
Proposed removal of existing timber building and separate store and erection of a 
replacement purpose-built art studio and store for private use.

P16/S2721/FUL - Approved (01/02/2017)
Proposed removal of existing timber building and separate store and erection of a 
replacement purpose-built art studio and store for private use.

P15/S4319/FUL - Approved (12/02/2016)
Proposed use of existing timber buildings as an art studio building and associated store 
for private use.

P14/S3258/FUL - Refused (14/01/2015) - Appeal dismissed (25/08/2015)
Proposed alterations to existing building to create a single dwelling and change of use 
of surrounding land for residential amenity purposes.

5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE
5.1 South Oxfordshire Core Strategy (SOCS) Policies

CS1  -  Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSEN1  -  Landscape protection
CSQ3  -  Design
CSS1  -  The Overall Strategy

Page 62

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=SE18/323
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/S1779/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/S2721/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P15/S4319/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P14/S3258/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee  – 16 January 2019

5.2 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 (SOLP 2011) policies;

C4  -  Landscape setting of settlements
C8  -  Adverse affect on protected species
C9  -  Loss of landscape features
D1  -  Principles of good design
D2  -  Safe and secure parking for vehicles and cycles
G2  -  Protect district from adverse development
G3  -  Development well served by facilities and transport
G4  -  Protection of Countryside
T1  -  Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
T2  -  Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

5.3 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents

South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (SODG 2016)

5.4 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

National Planning Policy Framework Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 The main issues in relation to this application are: 

1. The impact on the character and appearance of the site and its surroundings
2. Other material considerations

6.2 Condition 6 as outlined in Para. 2.1 above was imposed to allow the council to retain 
control over hardsurfacing within the site due to the site’s sensitive rural location within 
the Chilterns AONB.  Under Section 85 of the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 
the council has a statutory duty to have regard to the purpose of conserving and 
enhancing the natural beauty of the area of outstanding natural beauty.  Paragraph 172 
of the NPPF and Policy CSEN1 of the SOCS transpose this duty into planning policy.  

6.3 The site has been subject to several recent applications, including application 
P14/S3258/FUL for a residential use of the site.  This application was refused and 
subsequently dismissed on appeal.  The application proposal included a new trackway 
through the site, and in dismissing the appeal the Inspector commented as follows in 
respect of this trackway, “while I accept that materials could be controlled by condition, 
and note the degree to which the site is screened from publicly accessible areas, the 
imposition of a manmade feature of that sort on what is currently a paddock, would 
clearly detract from the landscape and scenic beauty of the AONB.”

6.4 I do not consider it is appropriate for Condition 6 to be removed as control over 
permanent hardstandings on the site is required to conserve the landscape qualities of 
the AONB.  However, there is justification for a temporary access way to be provided to 
allow for construction activities to take place on the site, particularly in relation to the 
transport of materials and construction equipment over the approximate 100 metre gap 
between the public highway and the position of the building approved under application 
P17/S1779/FUL.  This access is over an area of grassland and it is not unreasonable 
for a temporary surface to be provided to facilitate access, particularly during the winter 
months.  
 

6.5 A temporary access way would still have a detrimental impact on the landscape 
qualities of the AONB.  However, the harm would be temporary and justified by the 
required construction activities.  To avoid any visual and landscape harm beyond the 

Page 63



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee  – 16 January 2019

construction period a condition requiring the land, including the highway verge, to be 
reinstated to grass is recommended.  

6.6
Other Material Considerations
The ground works and surfacing with hardcore materials to form the temporary access 
have already been carried out and any potential impact on the adjacent trees has 
occurred.  The trees are not subject to a Tree Preservation Order and there is no 
benefit in requiring further information regarding the access at this stage.  

6.7 There is a long established gated access into the site from the public highway via a 
wide area of highway verge, which falls within the National Trust’s ownership.  Any 
planning permission for a temporary hardsurface does not give the applicant a right to 
undertake works on third party land, and the agreement of the land owner would still be 
required.  The use of the established gated access would inevitably increase during the 
construction period, but again this is temporary and would be the case irrespective of 
the outcome of this application.  The Highway Authority has raised no objections 
subject to the reinstatement of the highway verge.  

7.0 CONCLUSION
7.1 The provision of a temporary access track is justified in relation to facilitating access for 

the construction activities associated with planning permission P17/S1779/FUL.  
However, the removal of Condition 6 of this planning permission is not appropriate due 
to the potential harm to the landscape qualities of the Chilterns Area of Outstanding 
Natural Beauty.  

8.0 RECOMMENDATION
8.1 To delegate authority to the head of planning to grant planning permission 

subject to the following conditions (full wording is used for Conditions 1 and 6 
for the purposes of clarity):

1. Prior to the first use of the building approved under application  
P17/S1779/FUL any material used to form areas of hardstanding including 
an access or driveway shall be removed from the application site and the 
land within the application site, including the highway verge, shall be 
restored to grass at the same ground level as existed prior to the 
implementation of planning permission P17/S1779/FUL.

2. Development to be carried out in accordance with the approved plans of 
application P17/S1779/FUL.

3. Materials to be as agreed under application P18/S0207/DIS.
4. Landscaping scheme to be implemented in accordance with the details 

agreed under application P18/S0207/DIS.
5. External lighting to be first agreed in writing.
6. With the exception of the temporary access associated with the 

application hereby permitted, which shall be removed in accordance with 
the requirements of Condition 1, no development comprising of the 
formation, laying out and construction of an access, driveway or other 
hardstanding within the application site shall be undertaken without the 
prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority notwithstanding 
the provisions of the Town and Country (General Permitted Development 
Order) 2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order).  

7. No overnight accommodation of the building.
8. Use as private artist studio only.

Author: Tom Wyatt
Email:    planning@southoxon.gov.uk 
Tel:        01235 422600

Page 64



Appendix A

Page 65

Agenda Item 11



Tractor store and
orchard equipment

Apple orchard planted in shaded area.

Footprint of existing buildings 
shown green dashed line

Footprint of approved building 
shown red dashed line

Three new semi-mature trees

Two new semi-mature trees

North-East Elevation

24
00

30
00

South-West Elevation

686

store

wc

BASEMENT FLOOR

5600

Tractor store and
orchard equipment

2100

39
00

21
00

56
00

Outline of basement below

Studio

South-East Elevation

North-West Elevation
revisions

Office 4, Unit 1.
Henley Enterprise Park, Greys Road,
Henley-on-Thames
Oxon. RG9 1UF

Telephone  07970 073460
Email  chris@tappassociates.com date scale

job drawing

NOTE
Do not scale from these drawings. Measure all critical dimensions on site.

drawn by drawing no.

Greys Meadow, Rotherfield greys
Mr Clive Hemsley

Proposed Plan, Elevations
& Site Plan

1101.PL.004eMarch 2016 CT 1:100 & 1:500 @ A3c h a r t e r e d a r c h i t e c t s
a s s o c i a t e s

Appendix B

P
age 66



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee  – 16 January 2019

APPLICATION NO. P18/S3093/FUL
APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION
REGISTERED 26.9.2018
PARISH THAME
WARD MEMBER(S) David Dodds

Caroline Newton
Nigel Champken-Woods
Jeannette Matelot

APPLICANT Mr H Gleed
SITE Land To The Rear Of Unit 1 Christmas Lane Thame 

Oxfordshire, OX9 2BY
PROPOSAL Proposed contractors storage yard B8 and 

associated office B1
OFFICER Tom Wyatt

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 The application is referred to Planning Committee due to an objection from Great 

Haseley Parish Council.  

1.2 The site, which is shown on the OS extract attached at Appendix A, lies to the rear of 
a main Ford car dealership, and to the north and west are open fields although the 
former railway line does continue to the west. To the south there is an extensive range 
of industrial buildings which are constructed in a variety of materials but mostly 
utilitarian. It includes a large transport company and a car breakers/scrap yard. These 
are well established buildings and uses. 

1.3 Planning permission has been granted under applications P15/S3769/FUL and 
P17/S0702/FUL for the use of the adjoining land immediately to the east as a 
contractor’s yard.  This has been implemented and the site is fully operational and 
includes the majority of the land now subject to this planning application.

2.0 PROPOSAL
2.1 The application seeks planning permission for the creation of a contractor’s yard.  The 

yard would be used by a mobile concrete company.  The site measures approximately 
2400 square metres in area, and the majority of the site would be used for plant 
storage.  The submitted plans also indicate that a modest single storey office building 
would be sited in the north west corner of the site along with staff parking for six cars.  
The site would be bounded by 2 metre high security fencing.  

2.2 Two thirds of the site already benefits from planning permission under application 
P17/S0702/FUL and it is only the rearmost third of the site (approximately 800 square 
metres), which falls outside of the site area of this earlier planning permission.  This 
area also falls within Great Haseley Parish whilst the remainder of the site falls within 
Thame Parish.  Access to the site would be via the existing access from Rycote Lane to 
the east.  

2.3 A copy of the plans accompanying the application are attached at Appendix B and 
other documentation and representations associated with the application can be viewed 
on the council’s website, www.southoxon.gov.uk. 

Page 67

Agenda Item 12

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/S3093/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee  – 16 January 2019

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
3.1 Thame Town Council - No objections subject to there being no objections from the 

Highway Authority. 

Great Haseley Parish Council – Objects for the following reasons: 
-The application encroaches onto open greenfield space
-Further incremental growth on a site which has already been the subject of incremental 
growth over recent years
-Increased traffic movement entering and leaving Rycote Lane
-Insufficient information supplied related to hours of operation and number of 
employees

Highways Liaison Officer (Oxfordshire County Council) - No objections

Contaminated Land Officer – No comments. The applicant should be asked to submit 
a contaminated land preliminary risk assessment consultants report, which will 
establish the potential for land contamination to impact the application site.

Scotia Gas Networks Plant Protection Team – Guidance provided regarding works 
near gas pipelines.  

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
4.1 P17/S0702/FUL - Approved (08/05/2017)

Change of use from agricultural to space for further open storage and parking.

P16/S2997/FUL - Approved (08/11/2016)
Variation of condition 8 (Open Storage) on application P15/S3769/FUL .

'Erection of a new office and warehouse. Alterations to vehicular access'

P15/S3769/FUL - Approved (14/01/2016)
Variation of condition 2 on application ref. P12/S1230/FUL - revised building layout, 
appearance and location

Erection of a new office and warehouse. Alterations to vehicular access.

5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE
5.1 South Oxfordshire Core Strategy (SOCS) Policies;

CS1  -  Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSEM1  -  Supporting a successful economy
CSEM2  -  The amount and distribution of employment
CSEM4  -  Supporting economic development
CSEN1  -  Landscape protection
CSQ3  -  Design
CSS1  -  The Overall Strategy
CSTHA1  -  The Strategy for Thame

5.2 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 (SOLP 2011) Policies;
C4  -  Landscape setting of settlements
C8  -  Adverse affect on protected species
D1  -  Principles of good design
E5  -  Business, industrial, warehousing and storage proposals
EP1  -  Adverse affect on people and environment
EP6  -  Sustainable drainage
EP7  -  Impact on ground water resources

Page 68

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/S0702/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/S2997/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P15/S3769/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee  – 16 January 2019

EP8  -  Contaminated land
G2  -  Protect district from adverse development
G4  -  Protection of Countryside
T1  -  Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
T2  -  Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

5.3 Thame Neighbourhood Plan (TNP) Policies;
WS12 - Retain existing employment land in employment use
WS13 - Support improvements to existing employment areas
ESDQ16 - Development must relate well to its site and its surroundings
ESDQ22 - The visual impact of new development on views from the countryside must 
be minimised
ESDQ29 - Design car parking so that it fits in with the character of the proposed 
development

5.4 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents

South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (SODG 2016)

5.5 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

National Planning Policy Framework Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 The main planning issues in relation to this application are: 

1. The principle of the development
2. The impact on the character and appearance of the site and surrounding area
3. Other material considerations

6.2

The Principle of the Development

As stated above approximately two thirds of the site already benefits from planning 
permission for storage associated with the use of the wider site by David Einig 
Contracting.  The principle of redeploying this employment land and the relatively 
modest extension of employment land proposed falls to be considered against the 
relevant development plan policies.  

6.3 Government guidance contained within the NPPF places a strong emphasis on building 
the local economy and states at Para. 80 that ‘Planning policies and decisions should 
help create the conditions in which businesses can invest, expand and adapt. 
Significant weight should be placed on the need to support economic growth and 
productivity, taking into account both local business needs and wider opportunities for 
development’.  

6.4 The site is located in the area of countryside outside of the main settlement of Thame, 
and in relation to employment uses in the countryside Para. 84 of the NPPF states that, 
‘Planning policies and decisions should recognise that sites to meet local business and 
community needs in rural areas may have to be found adjacent to or beyond existing 
settlements, and in locations that are not well served by public transport. In these 
circumstances it will be important to ensure that development is sensitive to its 
surroundings, does not have an unacceptable impact on local roads and exploits any 
opportunities to make a location more sustainable (for example by improving the scope 
for access on foot, by cycling or by public transport). The use of previously developed 
land, and sites that are physically well-related to existing settlements, should be 
encouraged where suitable opportunities exist.’ 

Page 69



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee  – 16 January 2019

6.5 In the context of local development plan policies, Policy WS13 of the TNP supports the 
principle of improvements to existing employment areas. This is consistent with Policy 
CSEM4 of the SOCS, which is supportive of economic development, and specifically 
allows for the redevelopment of employment sites and for the reasonable extension of 
premises on existing sites.  

6.6 The principle of the development is considered acceptable having regard to the nature 
of the commercial use already carried out on the majority of the application site and 
within the wider area, and the supportive policy framework in respect of new 
employment generating development.  Furthermore, the proposal would represent a 
modest increase in employment generating activity in an established employment area 
with good local transport links and accessibility to and from Thame.  Officers are also 
mindful of recent applications for economic development on land to the south and west, 
including the recent resolution to grant permission for the relocation of the cattle market 
under application P17/S4415/FUL.  

6.7

The Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Site and Surrounding Area

The site is located to the west of the existing car dealership and north of a range of
other industrial buildings and uses. The application site is set back a significant 
distance from the public highway (Rycote Lane) and the nearest public rights of way are 
located over 500 metres away to the south and west.  The site and proposed office 
building would not be readily visible from Rycote Lane and from this road and the public 
rights of way the development would be viewed in context with the surrounding 
commercial development.  Furthermore, the majority of the site would remain open 
whilst the proposed building is a modest structure of approximately 4.5 metres in height 
that would be dwarfed by adjacent buildings.  

6.8

Other Material Considerations

The proposed development is compatible with the adjacent land uses and would not 
cause any detriment to the amenity of neighbouring occupiers.  

6.9 The proposal would utilise the existing access, which is suitable for commercial traffic.  
Having regard to the existing use of this access, the proposed use is very unlikely to 
materially increase the level of traffic on the local highway network.  There is sufficient 
space within the site for staff and visitor parking.  

6.10 The site has already been levelled and is largely clear of vegetation, and the 
development would have no significant impact on natural landscape features or 
biodiversity.  The site lies on the route of a dismantled railway line and the 
Contaminated Land Officer has suggested that further information is required to 
investigate potential contamination of the site.  A condition is recommended to this 
effect.   

7.0 CONCLUSION
7.1 The application proposal is in accordance with the relevant development plan policies

and national planning policy as, subject to conditions, the development would respect
the character and appearance of the site and the surrounding area and would not
cause any harm to the amenities of neighbouring occupiers or be prejudicial
to highway safety.

Page 70



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee  – 16 January 2019

8.0 RECOMMENDATION
8.1 To delegate authority to the head of planning to grant planning permission 

subject to the following conditions: 

1. Commencement of development within three years.
2. Development in accordance with the approved plans. 
3. Storage on the site shall be limited to a height of 3.5 metres above ground 

level unless it relates to the storage of vehicles, plant, or machinery..
4. Existing hedging on the boundaries of the site to be retained.
5. Contaminated land investigation and remediation to be carried out.

Author: Tom Wyatt
Email: Planning@southoxon.gov.uk
Tel: 01235 422600

 

Page 71

mailto:Planning@southoxon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

Page 73

Agenda Item 12



Appendix B

P
age 74



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 16 January 2019

APPLICATION NO. P18/S3375/HH
APPLICATION TYPE HOUSEHOLDER
REGISTERED 9.10.2018
PARISH CHINNOR
WARD MEMBERS Lynn Lloyd

Ian White
APPLICANT Mr & Mrs David Wilmhurst
SITE 6 Leyburne Gardens Chinnor, OX39 4EL
PROPOSAL Single storey side and rear extension. Garage 

conversion. Alterations.
OFFICER Tom Wyatt

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 This application is referred to Planning Committee because the applicant is a close 

relative of a council employee.  

1.2 The application site, which is shown on the OS extract attached as Appendix A, 
comprises a modern detached dwelling located within the built-up area of Chinnor.  

2.0 PROPOSAL
2.1 The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a single storey side and 

rear extension to provide a one-bedroom annex to be used by a family member of the 
occupants of the existing dwelling.  As such the residential use of the annex would be 
ancillary to the residential use of the main dwelling.  

2.2 A copy of the plans accompanying the planning application is attached as Appendix B 
whilst other documentation and representations received in respect of the application 
scheme can be viewed on the council’s website, www.southoxon.gov.uk. 

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
3.1 Chinnor Parish Council - No objections

Highways Liaison Officer (Oxfordshire County Council) – Initial objection as off 
street parking for four vehicles needs to be demonstrated.  

N.B. A parking plan to show the provision of four spaces has subsequently been 
submitted. 

Neighbours – One representation has been received raising concern about light loss to 
a bedroom window.  

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
4.1 P86/N0745 - Approved (17/12/1986)

Residential housing development and associated roads and footpaths, access. (As 
amended by drawing nos. 122/7, 5.1, 4.1, 4, 6 and 5 and Certificates of Ownership 
accompanying Agent's letter dated 1 December 1986, by drawing no. 122/1A 
accompanying Agent's letter dated 5 December 1986 and by site plan

Page 75

Agenda Item 13

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/S3375/HH
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P86/N0745


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 16 January 2019

5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE
5.1 South Oxfordshire Core Strategy (SOCS) Policies;

CSQ3  -  Design

5.2 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 (SOLP 2011) Policies;
D1  -  Principles of good design
D2  -  Safe and secure parking for vehicles and cycles
G2  -  Protect district from adverse development
H13  -  Extension to dwelling
T1  -  Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users

5.3 Chinnor Neighbourhood Plan (CNP) Policies;
CH C1 – Design

5.4 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents

South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (SODG 2016)

5.5 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

National Planning Policy Framework Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 The main planning issues in relation to this proposal are: 

1. The impact on the character and appearance of the site and surrounding area
2. The impact on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers
3. Parking provision

6.2

The Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Site and Surrounding Area

As the proposed development would be ancillary to the main dwelling the proposal 
would fall to be assessed against the requirements of Policy H13 of the SOLP.  This 
Policy relates to extensions to dwellings and requires that the scale and design of the 
proposal is in keeping with the character of the dwelling and the site and with the 
appearance of the surrounding area.  

6.3 Leyburne Gardens is a mature 1980s housing estate with a suburban character that 
mainly comprises of detached two storey dwellings but there are also older bungalows 
adjacent to the application site.  Individual properties have been altered and extended 
over the years but there is still relatively strong homogeneity to the appearance of the 
housing.  Unlike several of the neighbouring properties, it does not appear that the 
application property has been extended from its original form. 
 

6.4 The proposed extension involves the conversion of the existing double garage and the 
redevelopment of the existing single storey element to the side of the dwelling.  Overall 
the dwelling would be extended approximately 2 metres to the rear and 2 metres to the 
side compared to its existing form.  In the context of the existing dwelling and the wider 
street scene the proposed development would represent a modest and subservient 
extension of the dwelling that would not detract from the character and appearance of 
the dwelling or the surrounding built form.  The extension would infill the gap between 
the side of the dwelling and the boundary with 4 Leyburne Gardens but this relationship 
is not uncharacteristic of the local street scene.  Furthermore, the modest scale and the 
hipped roof design would avoid a cramped relationship with the side of the adjacent 
bungalow.  

Page 76



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 16 January 2019

6.5

The Impact on the Amenity of Neighbouring Occupiers

Policy H13 of the SOLP also requires that development does not harm the amenity of 
neighbouring occupiers.  The modest size and scale of the development along with its 
siting and design would ensure that the noticeable impact of the extension would be 
confined to 4 Leyburne Gardens, the adjoining bungalow to the west.  

6.6 The rear part of the proposed extension would be sited adjacent to the garage of the 
neighbouring property and this structure would buffer the impact of the extension on the 
side and rear elevation of the main dwelling.  The side elevation of 4 Leyburne Gardens 
comprises a bedroom window towards the front, which would be separated from the 
proposed extension by approximately 3.5 metres.  The extension would affect the 
outlook from the bedroom window but this impact is limited by the relatively low eaves 
and hipped roof design of the extension, and sunlight would not be materially affected 
due to the extension lying to the north east.  The bedroom is also served by a larger 
window in the front elevation of the dwelling.  In light of these factors the extension 
would not cause any significant harm to the amenity of the neighbouring occupiers.  

6.7

Parking Provision

The proposal would result in the loss of the existing garage accommodation, however, 
there are no restrictions in place to prevent the conversion of the garaging without 
planning permission.  Nevertheless, mindful of the loss of the garage accommodation, 
and the increase in the number of bedrooms at the property it is necessary in line with 
Policy T1 of the SOLP to ensure that sufficient parking is provided.  There are already 
three off street parking spaces at the property, and it is clear that a fourth space can be 
provided as requested by the Highway Authority. A condition is recommended to secure 
this parking provision. 

6.8 The proposal is not liable to pay the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) due to the 
proposed floor space being under 100 square metres.  

7.0 CONCLUSION
7.1 The application proposal is in accordance with the relevant development plan policies 

and national planning policy as, subject to conditions, the development would respect 
the character and appearance of the site and the surrounding area and would not 
cause any significant harm to the amenities of neighbouring occupiers.  

8.0 RECOMMENDATION
8.1 To delegate authority to the head of planning to grant planning permission 

subject to the following conditions:

1. Commencement of development within three years.
2. Development to be carried out in accordance with the approved plans. 
3. Walls and roof to be constructed in matching materials.  
4. Four off-street parking spaces to be provided prior to occupation.
5. The approved accommodation shall be used for residential purposes 

ancillary to the main dwelling.

Author: Tom Wyatt
Email:   Planning@southoxon.gov.uk
Tel:       01235 422600

 

Page 77

mailto:Planning@southoxon.gov.uk


South Oxfordshire District Council – «REPORT_NAME»

1 Page 78



Appendix A

Page 79

Agenda Item 13



Appendix B

P
age 80



6 Leyburne Gardens – Parking Plan  

 

 

 

 

Page 81



6 Leyburne Gardens – Parking Plan  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 82


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	Minutes
	19.12.18 Minutes pack
	Minutes


	8 P18/S2331/FUL - Beechwood, Tokers Green Lane, Tokers Green
	P18/S2331/FUL - Beechwood, Tokers Green Lane, Tokers Green - Appendices
	1 Location Plan drwgno 17098.L01
	Sheets
	L01 - LOCATION PLAN


	2 Block Plan &  Street Scene Proposed drwgno 17095.PP302c
	Sheets
	PP302 - BLOCK PLAN & STREET ELEVATION


	2a Site Plan Proposed drwgno 17095 - PP301b
	2b Floor Plans Existing drwgno 17095.SU001
	Sheets
	SU001 - FLOOR PLANS - AS EXISTING


	2c Floor Plans Plot 1 Proposed drwgno 17095.PP101b
	Sheets
	PE101 - PLOT 1 ELEVATIONS - AS PROPOSED
	PP101 - PLOT 1 FLOOR PLANS - AS PROPOSED


	2d Floor Plans Plot 2 Proposed drwgno 17095.PP201b
	Sheets
	PE201 - PLOT 2 ELEVATIONS - AS PROPOSED
	PP201 - PLOT 2 FLOOR PLANS - AS PROPOSED


	2e Elevations Plot 1 Proposed drwgno 17095.PE101b
	Sheets
	PE101 - PLOT 1 ELEVATIONS - AS PROPOSED


	2f Elevations Plot 2 Proposed drwgno 17095.PE201b
	Sheets
	PE201 - PLOT 2 ELEVATIONS - AS PROPOSED
	PP201 - PLOT 2 FLOOR PLANS - AS PROPOSED


	2g Garage Plot 1 Proposed drwgno 17095-PP501
	Sheets
	PP501 - PLOT 1 GARAGE - AS PROPOSED


	2h Garage Plot 2 Proposed drwgno 17095-PP601
	Sheets
	PP601 - PLOT 2 GARAGE - AS PROPOSED


	2i Roof Plan Proposed drwgno 17095-IP002c
	Sheets
	IP002 - ROOF PLAN - AS PROPOSED


	2j Section Plan Proposed drwgno 17095.PS301c
	Sheets
	PS301 - SITE SECTION - AS PROPOSED


	2k Proposed Drainage drwgno 3324-S4-TOKE-ICS-01-XX-DR-C-003-P3
	Sheets and Views
	003_Drainage


	Planting Plan drwgno BEN
	P401-Planting Plan - Trees
	1/P400


	Topographical Survey drwgno 17095.TOPO
	Sheets
	TOPO - TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY




	9 P18/S3443/FUL - 35 Park Road, Didcot OX11 8QL
	P18/S3443/FUL - 35 Park Road, Didcot, OX11 8QL - Appendices 1-2
	Appendix 1 - OS Map Committee
	APPENDIX 2 - Application Plans


	10 P18/S3345/FUL - Delight 2 Kebab & Pizza House, 100 Broadway, Didcot OX11 8AB
	P18/S3345/FUL - Delight 2 Kebab & Pizza House, 100 Broadway, Didcot - Appendices
	Appendix 1
	P03W0079


	11 P18/S2253/FUL - Grey Meadows, Rotherfield Greys RG9 4QJ
	P18/S2253/FUL - Grey Meadows, Rotherfield Greys - Appendices
	Location Plan
	Proposed Floor Plan, Elevation and Site Plan drwgno 1101.PL.004e


	12 P18/S3093/FUL - Land To The Rear Of Unit 1, Christmas Lane, Thame, Oxfordshire OX9 2BY
	P18/S3093/FUL - Land To The Rear Of Unit 1, Christmas Lane, Thame, Oxfordshire - Appendices
	1 Location Plan
	Composite Proposed drwgno 10


	13 P18/S3375/HH - 6 Leyburne Gardens, Chinnor OX39 4EL
	P18/S3375/HH - 6 Leyburne Gardens Chinnor - Appendices
	1 Location Plan
	Composite drwgno 18897.01
	Parking Plan





